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Corporate Information
NCIE- s

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, JP (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015
and resigned with effect from 14 March 2016)

Mr. Wu Xiaolin (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015 as an
executive director and the chief executive officer with
effect from 31 July 2015)

Mr. Shi Liangsheng
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)

Mr. Wen Wenfeng
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015)

Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace
(redesignated from executive director to non-executive
director and ceased to be the chairlady with effect
from 15 June 2015, resigned as non-executive director
with effect from 31 July 2015)

Mr. Xing Cheng
(resigned with effect from 31 May 2015)

Mr. He Xiaowu
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)

Mr. Lo Wing Sang
(resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George

(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015)
Mr. Yu Shaoheng

(appointed with effect from 14 March 2016)
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace

(resigned with effect from 31 July 2015)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang

(resigned with effect from 9 July 2015)
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Corporate Information
NCIE- s

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015)
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Tse Long
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Ms. Tang Man Yi
(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 and
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew
(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 and
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP
(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Zeng Qingkai
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (Chairman)
(appointed as chairman with effect
from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Tse Long
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Ms. Tang Man Yi

(appointed as chairlady with effect from 10 June 2015

and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew
(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 and
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP
(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Zeng Qingkai
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)
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Corporate Information
NCIE- s

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (Chairman)

(appointed as chairman with effect

from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Tse Long

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Wen Wenfeng

(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015)
Ms. Tang Man Yi

(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 and

resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew

(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 and

resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP

(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Zeng Qingkai

(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)

Nomination Committee
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (Chairman)
(appointed as chairman with effect
from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Tse Long
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Wu Xiaolin
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015)
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew
(appointed as chairman on 15 June 2015 redesignated
from chairman to member on 16 June 2015,
and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
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Corporate Information
NCIE- s

Ms. Tang Man Yi
(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 and
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Zeng Qingkai
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP
(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)

Investment and Management Committee
Mr. Wen Wenfeng (Chairman)
(appointed as chairman with effect
from 31 July 2015)
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, JP
(appointed as chairman with effect
from 16 June 2015, redesignated from
Chairman to member on 31 July 2015
and resigned with effect from 16 September 2015)
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015)
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Wu Xiaolin
(appointed with effect from 16 September 2015)
Mr. Shi Liangsheng
(appointed with effect from 16 September 2015)
Ms. Tang Man Yi
(appointed as chairlady on 10 June 2015,
redesignated from chairlady to member on 16 June
2015, resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)

Mr. Lo Wing Sang

(resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)
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Corporate Information
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley

(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015)
Ms. Chu Wing Sze, Jenny

(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)

AUDITOR
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House
Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 204-205, 2/F.

OfficePlus @Sheung Wan

No0.93-103 Wing Lok Street

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square

338 King's Road

North Point

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1041

WEBSITE
www.cnepgl.com
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
ITHBERBREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of China New Energy Power Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015.

RESULTS

The audited consolidated loss for the year of the Group
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$251.34 million. Basic loss per share based on the
weighted average number of 3,095,487,497 shares in
issue amounted to HK8.12 cents (2014: earnings per share
HK4.65 cents).

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the businesses and operations of the
Group were mainly on securities trading and investment
and property investment.

The Group’s consolidated net loss for the year was
approximately HK$254.56 million (2014: net profit of
approximately HK$122.63 million). The consolidated
net assets of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$601.38 million as at 31 December 2014 to
approximately HK$426.61 million as at 31 December 2015.
The consolidated net loss was mainly attributable to (i) net
realised losses and net unrealised losses of investments at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$6.46
million and approximately HK$173.11 million respectively;
(ii) a decrease in dividend income from investments in
securities of approximately HK$6.18 million; (iii) loss on
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$8.66 million;
(iv) the fair value loss on the investment properties of
approximately HK$20.56 million and (v) the increase in
administrative expenses of approximately HK$33.2 million.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
TR RES

BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activities of the Group are mainly on
securities trading and investment and property investment.

The loss of the Group for the year 2015 was mainly
attributable to the change in the fair value change of the
realised and unrealised held for trading investment and
derivative financial instrutments.

The Group has been actively exploring other suitable
opportunities to diversify its business and further applying
the cost effective measures to improve the financial
performance of the Group.

The Group will try its best effort to achieve a financial
growth for the Group to maximize shareholders’ value. As
at the day of this report, the Group successfully completed
the acquisition of securities business and obtained the
money lending licence.

8 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
ITHBERBREE

Property investment business

The segmental loss of approximately HK$20.57 million
(2014: loss of HK$0.33 million) was mainly due to the fair
value loss on the investment properties.

Securities trading and investment business

During the reporting year, a negative revenue of
approximately HK$179.27 million was recorded from the
operation of investments in securities (2014: a revenue
of approximately HK$160.87 million). This represented
net fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss, loss on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and dividend income
received from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss during the reporting year. The segmental loss of
approximately HK$186.09 million was mainly due to the
loss on fair value changes and disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
TR RES

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS
The Group will continue focus its efforts to the development
of its existing principal businesses (1) investment properties
and (2) securities trading and investment and other potential
projects with a view to providing steady returns as well as
fruitful growth for its shareholders.

In addition, the Group will further extend its principal
business and direct its resources to the newly acquired
and setup businesses in securities and money lending. In
securities segment, the acquisition of Lamtex Securities
Limited is completed in March 2016 and in the money
lending segment, the licence is granted to New Winning
Finance Co. Ltd in March 2016. It is expected that such
new business will diversify the income stream of the Group
and is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

Meanwhile, we will also maintain a stringent financial
policy and a prudent cash flow management to ensure
reasonable liquidity for the Group’s operations as well as
for its existing and future investments.

We believe that, in such a volatile economic environment,
these operation strategies will enable the Group to
maintain its competitiveness and mitigate risks, thereby
ensuring the Group’s sustainable growth.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

In order to increase our capital to capture the business
opportunities, the Company has completed July 2015
Placement and February 2016 Placement. The major part
of the net proceeds from the fund raising activities are
used in enhancing the Group's general working capital and
developing existing and new business needs.

1 o China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
ITHBERBREE

July 2015 Placement

On 8 July 2015, the Company completed the placing
of 390,600,000 new shares of the Company (“Shares”)
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the directors
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on
17 June 2015 at a placing price of HK$0.201 each. The
Company intended to apply a majority of the net proceeds
from the placing to enhance its general working capital
base; to develop its existing businesses and prepare itself
to take up investment opportunities in the future with
readily available funds, which is in the interests of the
Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

February 2016 Placement

Reference is made to the announcements of China New
Energy Power Group Limited dated 8 and 26 January 2016
in relation to the Placing of up to 190,614,650 new Shares
under the General Mandate. Capitalised terms used in this
report shall have the same meanings as those defined in
the announcements unless otherwise stated.

On 1 February 2016, the Company completed the placing
of 190,500,000 new shares of the Company pursuant
to the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 17 June
2015 at a placing price of HK$0.11 each.

The net proceeds of the Placing are intended to be used
as general working capital for existing business and for
development of new business if opportunities arise.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
TR RES

USE OF PROCEEDS FrEXERR

The Company has conducted the following equity fund REBEZ2-_ZT—RHF+_A=1+—HIFE
raising activities during the year ended 31 December 2015 MRABRERRZEEEZAREBR XA A
and subsequent to end of the reporting period up to the BEHETUATIRAEEZTE :

date of this report:

Date of Fund raising Net proceeds Intended use of net
announcement activity raised proceeds
FFEKABRE  FERRRE
NERH REEH R BERRE
8 July 2015 Placing of Approximately General working
390,600,000 new  HK$77 million capital of the Group,
Shares at HK$0.201 in particular, (i)
per Share approximately HK$60

million be applied for
the Group's segment
of "Property — property
investment”; and (ii)
approximately HK$17
million be applied for
the Group’s overall
operating expenses.

—T-hF wEERRMN ##4977,000,000 AEE-—RLEES
+ANH 02018 Ll E BT BAEATAZ ()
390,600,000 /%% #60,000,0005& 7T
&) RAKE [WME-Y
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EAEENRESE
X o
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Actual use of net
proceeds

FRERRFRERAR

(i) Approximately
HK$10.2 million was used
as deposit for acquisition
of interest in land located
in China, approximately
HK$14.7 million was
used for acquisition of

a leasehold property
located in Hong Kong; (ii)
approximately HK$16.1
million was applied as
operating expenses of
the Group; and (iii) the
remaining balance of
approximately HK$36
million was not yet
utilized.
(i)%710,200,000/% 7T
AR AP B L
WEERZES A
14,700,000/ 70 A3 74
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
TR RES

Date of
announcement

NEBRH

1 February 2016

—NEF
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thank to our loyal
shareholders, customers and business associates for their

Fund raising
activity

SEEH

Placing of
190,500,000 new
Shares at HK$0.11
per Share

EERRH

0. 118l E
190,500,000 %
i)

continuous support to the Group.

my gratitude and appreciation to our management and
all staff for their invaluable effort and contributions

throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board,

WU Xiaolin

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, April 2016

Net proceeds
raised
FrEKmERE
28

Approximately
HK$20 million

#54920,000,000
BT

| would also extend

Intended use of net
proceeds
FEREFE
BEMRZ

General working capital
for existing business
and development of
new business.
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Actual use of net
proceeds

FREREFRERAR

(i) Approximately
HK$8 million used

for acquisition of

new business; (ii)
approximately HK$6
million was applied as
operating expenses of
the Group; and (iii) the
remaining balance of
approximately HK$6
million was not yet
utilized.
()#78,000,00075 LA
PUEERT TS ¢ (D4
6,000,000/ 7T A {EAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

This represented (loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net fair value change on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and rental income.

Segmental Results

During the reporting year, securities trading and investment
and property investment remain the continuing business
operations of the Group.

Property investment business

Approximately HK$1.47 million was generated from
the operation of property investment business for the
reporting year (2014: nil) and its segmental result suffered
a loss of approximately HK$20.57 million (2014: a loss of
approximately HK$0.33 million).

Securities trading and investment business

The negative revenue (2014: revenue) generated from
the operation in securities trading and investment for
the reporting year was approximately HK$179.27 million
(2014: revenue of approximately HK$160.87 million)
and its segmental result reflected a loss of approximately
HK$186.09 million (2014: a profit of approximately
HK$152.44 million).

Other Income

The Group’s other income for the reporting year decreased
to approximately HK$0.27 million from approximately
HK$7.05 million in year 2014. Such decrease was mainly
due to the absence of imputed interest income on deferred
consideration receivable.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the reporting
year increased to approximately HK$50.42 million from
approximately HK$17.21 million in the year 2014. Such
increase was mainly due to the write-off of deposit paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, legal
and professional fees increase in relation to a series of
corporate transactions during the year and the significant
rental increment due to office relocation. In addition,
administrative expense incurred by the other parts of the
Group were also substantially increased when compared
with those incurred in 2014.

Share-based Payments
No share-based payments of the Group for the reporting
year (2014: HK$41.40 million).

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for the reporting year was
decreased to approximately HK$0.13 million from
approximately HK$5.04 million in 2014. The decrease
was due to the fact that all outstanding convertible notes
were fully converted into ordinary shares of the Company
in April 2014 and as such, no finance costs on those
convertible notes was incurred thereafter.

Loss for the Year and loss per Share

The Group’s loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the reporting year was approximately HK$251.34
million (2014: a profit of approximately HK$122.63
million). Such change was mainly due to the net fair value
loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2014: gain). Basic loss per share of
the Group was approximately HK8.12 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately
HK4.65 cents earnings per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the businesses and operations of the
Group were mainly on securities trading and investment
and property investment.

The Group’s consolidated net loss for the year was
approximately HK$254.56 million (2014: net profit of
approximately HK$122.63 million). The consolidated net
assets of the Group decreased from approximately HK$601.38
million as at 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$426.61
million as at 31 December 2015. The consolidated net loss was
mainly attributable to (i) net realised losses and net unrealised
losses of investments at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$6.46 million and approximately HK$173.11
million respectively; (i) a decrease in dividend income from
investments in securities of approximately HK$6.18 million;
(iii) loss on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$8.66
million; (iv) the fair value loss on the investment properties
of approximately HK$20.56 million and (v) the increase in
administrative expenses of approximately HK$33.2 million.

In January 2015, the Board announced that the Group
intended to develop new business of (i) environmental
protection and renewable energy, including provision
of environmental protection services, developing new
renewable energy; and (ii) supply chain management
of various products. Subsequently in February 2015,
the Group commenced its operation of supply chain
management business. In view of the unsatisfactory
performance of the Group’s supply chain management
business, the Group discontinued such business in the
end of 2015. In addition, the Board has no intention to
develop the new business of environmental protection
and renewable energy as the Board has not yet formed
any feasible development plan or identified any feasible
targets. During the year under review, the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in its subsidiary Well Champion
Asia Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “the Well Champion Group”) to an independent third
party at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$1.00 in
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the second half of 2015. The Well Champion Group was
previously engaged mainly on Supply Chain management
business. The reason for disposal was mainly due to
continuous loss situation and insufficient orders intake.

In July 2015, the Company also completed a placement
of 390,600,000 new shares with value of HK$0.201 each.
The July Placement was referred to the announcement
dated 17 June 2015 under the General Mandate. After
the completion of the 2015 July Placement, the issued
share capital of the Company has been further enlarged to
3,296,673,250 shares in total.

In September 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with SZ Enterprise Union
Financial Group Limited (A SRtEBERAR])
("Seller”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase the entire issued share capital of its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Lamtex Securities Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong which is a licensed corporation
carrying out business in Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activity as defined under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, at a cash consideration of HK$16 million (the
“Acquisition”). As the Seller was wholly owned by the
uncle of Mr. Wu Xiaolin, the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, and Mr. Wen Wenfeng, an Executive
Director was the sole director of the Seller, the Acquisition
also constituted a connected transaction for the Company.
The Acquisition was completed in March 2016. For further
details, please refer to the announcement dated 21
September 2015 and the circular dated 13 November 2015
of the Company.

Property investment business

The segmental loss of approximately HK$20.57 million
was mainly due to the fair value loss on the investment
properties.
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Securities trading and investment business ELEERBREEK

During the reporting year, a negative revenue of approximately ~ AARIMEFEN » BEREEKEE 28
HK$179.27 million was recorded from the operation of U A &#7179,270,000 T ( —ZF — PO -
investments in securities (2014: a revenue of approximately W A %) 160,870,000/ 70 ) ° EIEAREF
HK$160.87 million). This represented net fair value loss on ERNIEAFEEFABZZEREEZAE
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, loss  {EEE %% - HERA T EFABRZS
on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit MEEZEEEEBEFEEERSRI ZRE
or loss and dividend income received from held-for-trading LIﬁU\ D FEE1E%)186,090,0008 0 E
securities during the reporting year. The segmental loss of REEEHLHERAFTEFTABREZ
approximately HK$186.09 million was mainly due to the loss ﬁygﬂéﬁ}zZEﬁEﬁﬁﬁz

on fair value changes and disposal of financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

Information on the Group’s financial assets at fair value FRAXEER_ZTE—HAF+_A=+—
through profit or loss which amounted to approximately HIZ A FBEF AEBEZ 2 2 BMEE L

HK$275.01 million as at 31 December 2015 as below: 275,010,000 B 7L 2 ERI&EFIAT -
Percentage of
shareholding in Percentage to net
the investee Market value as at assets value of the
Number of shares company as at 31 December 2015 Group as at
held asat 31 December 2015 R=Z-1% 31 December 2015
Name of stock 31 December 2015 RZE-E%F  Investmentcost ~ tZA=t-H RZB-1%
(Stock code) R-%-1Ff  tZA=t-A RERA ZhE  TZA=t-H
k2R Principal business tZA=t-H RRRELR (HKS million) (HKS' million) HAEBEE
(REHRE) IEEH Rt #AE ZBRERDL (BEET) (BE#T) FEZADY
PPS International Providing a comprehensive range of 1,921,900,000 12.81% 259.90 46.13* 10.81%
(Holdings) Limited cleaning and related services.
(8201) ("PPS")

EBERERLA REXENEZREBRE -
(8201) ([ EH )

Yat Sing Holdings Provide building maintenance and 13,230,000 1.18% 18.65 10.58 2.48%
Limited (3708) ("Yat  renovation service in Hong Kong.
Sing")

ARERER AT NEAREETHERERBIR
(3708) ([ RER ) e

Chun Sing Engineering  Foundation and substructure 5,000,000 0.49% 9.12 430 1.01%
Holdings Limited (2277) - construction business in Hong

Kong mainly include ELS works, pile

caps construction and substructure

construction for residential,

commercial and infrastructure

projects.
BAIRERARAA AEAUSHEARTERBRER
(2277) B TEORMT BERENSE
BAMEARRELR BERER
TE&ERE -
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Percentage of
shareholding in Percentage to net
the investee Market value as at assets value of the
Number of shares company as at 31 December 2015 Group as at
held as at 31 December 2015 RZZ-1% 31 December 2015
Name of stock 31 December 2015 RZE-F%F  Investmentcost ~ t=A=t-8 RZB-1%
(Stock code) RZ%-1f  +tZR=1-H REHA ZhE  tZA=t-R
EL: Principal business tZB=1+-H RERELR (HKS million) (HKS" million) LAEEEE
(RERHE) IBER FiERO%E ZRERAL (RE#ER) (REER) BEZAAL
Tack Fiori International ~ Apparel retail business in the 107,000,000 4.99% 151.45 214.00 50.16%

Group Limited (928)  PRC and securities trading and
investments business in Hong Kong.

HRARSEERAT ATENSRRTERHREREL
(928) SEFREERARK

* Figure denoted the value as at 14 December 2015 (stock * ZEEERN_E—AF+-_ATNHZEE
suspended trading on 15 December 2015) (BIR—E—HF+-_ATHEEEFESR

Information on the performance of the Group’s financial ERAAEREHEZE —_ZE—HRF+_-_A=1+—

assets during the year ended 31 December 2015 as below: HIFrEESREENRR ZERSHYWOT -
Fair value Gain/(loss) Dividend
changes for the on disposal for received for the
year ended the year ended year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2015 31 December 2015
BE_T-IF BE-_T-1F BE-T-1F
Name of stock +=ZA=+—-Hit +=ZA=+—-HLt +ZA=+-—-H1
(Stock code) FECAVESE FE2HERE (B8 FEZEWRE
B &8 (HKS million) (HK$ million) (HKS)
(RBRH) (BB#BT) (BEB#BT) (Bx)
Sky Forever (8047) Nil (15.64) Nil
F18(8047) i &
PPS (8201/8379) (213.77) Nil Nil
E1#(8201/8379) i &
Yat Sing (3708) (17.07) 9.00 Nil
HAX(3708) i
Chun Sing Engineering Holdings Limited (2277) (4.82) Nil Nil
EATRERERARI2277) i i
Tack Fiori International Group Limited (928) 62.55 Nil Nil
5 EREEBR A R(928) i i
CSOP FTSE China A50 ETF Nil 0.18 0.29
CSOPE R EIAS0 ETF i

HEFERE IEEERAT 20154% 19
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ERAASER_ZT—NER_FT—1F
T-A=t—HeRMEENEBZEHNH
FlanR

Information on the value of the Group's financial assets as
at 31 December 2014 and 2015 as below:

Market value Percentage to net Market value

asat  assets value of Number of as at
31 December the Group as at shares held 31 December
Number of shares 2014 31 December as at 2015
held as at 31 R-ZE-N& 2014 31 December RZE-TF
Name of stock December 2014 +=A=+-H R-ZE-ME 2015 +=A=t-H
(Stock code) RZE-m& ZmE +tZA=1+-H RZE-1& ZThiE
kg +=-A=+-H (HKS million) hAEEEE +-HA=1-H (HK$ million)
(RBRHR) RO E (BEBBR) FEZBAL FrERA8E (BEB%R)
Sky Forever (8047) 20,900,000 12.96 2.15% Nil Nil
F18(8047) it it
PPS (8201) 490,000,000 164.15 27.30% 1,921,900,000 46.13*
2 Fhh
EE#(8201)
Yat Sing (3708) Nil Nil Nil 13,230,000 10.58
AR%(3708) il i "
Chun Sing Engineering Nil Nil Nil 5,000,000 4.30
Holdings Limited (2277) & i i
=2 TIRERARRRI2277)
Tack Fiori International Group Nil Nil Nil 107,000,000 214.00
Limited (928) it i it
&SR EEBR A F)(928)
* Figure denoted the value as at 14 December, 2015 (stock DHEERN - E—AE+-_ATHAZEE

suspended trading on 15 December, 2015)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of the Group increased
from approximately HK$177.11 million as at 31 December
2014 to HK$275.01 million as at 31 December 2015. The
Group recorded negative fair value changes on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$173.11 million (the “"Negative FV Changes”)
and loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments of
approximately HK$6.46 million (the “loss”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Negative FV Changes were
mainly due to the significant negative fair value change
of the shares of PPS and the loss was mainly attributable
to the disposal of shares of Sky Forever. The Group's
investment strategy is to review the investment portfolio
continuously and make appropriate adjustments (by
acquisition or disposal) according to the market situation,
with an aim to generate reasonable returns.
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Subsequently, in March 2016, the Group sold all the shares
on hand of Tack Fiori International Group Limited (928)
and suffered a loss on disposal amounted to approximately
HK$42 million.

Decisions to dispose this securities investment were mainly

due to the following reasons:

1. Failure of previous mergers and acquisitions
detrimental to the interests of the company.

2. Corporate Governance doubt.

3. The share price was overvalued.

With the securities investment on hand, Chun Sing
Engineering Holdings Limited (2277) is principally engaged
in the foundation and substructure construction business
in Hong Kong. It provides foundation and substructure
construction services customers in Hong Kong for different
types of development projects. The company is expected to
continue to benefit from the future development of Hong
Kong's strong infrastructure.

Yat Sing Holdings Limited (3708) engaged mainly providing
services on the maintenance and renovation of buildings in
Hong Kong. It ranked sixth place in Hong Kong for building
maintenance and refurbishment service providers, a market
share of about 1.2%. We expect the company will continue
to benefit from the Housing Authority maintenance and
renovation contract opportunities

During the reporting year after various acquisitions,
including participation in PPS International (Holdings) Ltd’s
(“PPS") PPS Open Offer as shareholders of PPS and the PPS
Subscription (as further described in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 December 2015), the Group is
interested in an aggregate of 1,921,900,000 PPS Shares,
representing approximately 12.81% of the PPS Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2015. According to the PPS’s
announcement dated 14 December 2015, the Group
became the single largest shareholder of PPS. PPS Group
is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services which include the provision of cleaning and related
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R K& = & 51849 42,000,000 7T ©

BNTEARNATRA :

1. BEHEABEE AT -

2. (EERER
BRERESRT.

w

BEFEEFSFRE BEAIEERE

NAE(2277) T E R B BR B E
NTEGEEREEXER HRBABEREPR
RHETATEAEEZERBEENHERT
EEEERBG 22 R EBER
BXmRBEERYERENRKER-

11]=~I

BRIERAR AR (3708) = EREEIR M
BFHERENBHRYE REEEFTH
ERENBHREUERDHERESN A
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬂZ% o WAEFT A R R R A
SRNEEZEERERBERBFAOK

Fﬁfﬂﬁl

/

REAREFEARZEBEBESEE(RE
EREBITERERAG(EH HKRER
HEBAAEEMRERKBEEE(REAR
RIBA-Z—RAF+-_A=-t+WmWHZ
‘%ZE FHE)) % FAEEREH
1,921,900,000 [R E B i 15 R B 1 - 40
ER-_E—RE+_A=+—BEBTE
Bl 2 12.81% - RIBEAHA-ZT—HF
+-A+HBZEHAEL  AEEKRKAE
BroBE—SARE EBRSENETEEY
BRERERY  2RIEHTIISEER

Rl
il

D

HEFERS A EEERART 20155% 21



Management Discussion and Analysis
kk}% lﬂLnHﬂ& jf)fl'

services for (i) public area and office cleaning services which
involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of
garbage bins at commercial buildings, residential complexes,
hotels and their tenants and public
transport facilities such as airport, ferries, ferry terminal,
cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight kitchen
cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (iii)
external wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stone floor
maintenance and restoration services; (v) pest control and
fumigation services; (vi) waste management and disposal
solutions which mainly involve collection, transportation
and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper,
metal and plastic waste collected during the operations;
(vii) housekeeping services where the PPS Group provide
housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique
hotels, hostels and serviced apartments; (viii) secure and
confidential waste destruction for commercial clients; (ix)
sanitation solution for yacht; and (x) cleaning and waste
management solution for renovated apartment. Trading
in the shares of PPS was suspended from 15 December
2015 to 16 February 2016 as a result of, among other
things, certain legal proceedings against PPS, including a
petition for the winding up of PPS (“PPS Petition”), and
was resumed on 17 February 2016. As disclosed in the
announcement of PPS dated 12 April 2016, the PPS Petition
had been struck out by the Cayman Court as an abuse
of process. For further information, please refer to the
announcements of PPS dated 9, 24 and 30 December 2015,
4 and 16 February, 1 March and 12 April 2016.

shopping arcades,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$50.83 million (2014:
approximately HK$339.32 million), representing a decrease
of 85%. There was no bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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As at 31 December 2015, the current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 360.91 times (2014: 52.04 times)
and the net current assets amounted to approximately
HK$327.16 million (2014:approximately HK$508.73
million).

SHARE OPTION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted on 25 May 2012, whereby the Board may,
at its absolute discretion, grant options to any eligible
participants including directors and employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. On 23
December 2014, the Company has granted share options
under the Share Option Scheme to certain eligible grantees
(the "Grantees”), which enable the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 190,550,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of USD0.001 each in the share capital of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.405 per share.
During the year, 190,550,000 share options lapsed and no
share options were granted. And there was no outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2015.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the placement exercise in July increased
the number of issued shares by 390,600,000. As at 31
December 2015, the number of the Company’s issued
shares was 3,296,673,250 shares. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had no outstanding convertible notes,
bank and other borrowings (31 December 2014: nil), which
resulted in zero gearing ratio (31 December 2014: nil)
calculated on the basis of total debts and total assets of
the Group. As at 31 December 2015, total assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$427.52 million (31
December 2014: approximately HK$611.35 million).

MATERIAL CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group is not aware of any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEN Lo

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting year, the Group had not
pledged any assets (2014: Nil).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

There has been no significant change in the Group’s
policy in terms of exchange rate exposure. The Group
operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Most of
the transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The exchange rate of RMB
against HK$ is relatively stable. Hence, the Group neither
anticipates any significant exchange risk exposure nor has
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
of the Group will monitor foreign exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 18
full time management, administrative and operation staff
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages
with attractive discretionary bonus to employees. The
Group regularly reviews its remuneration packages in light
of the overall development of the Group as well as the
market conditions. In addition, the Group has adopted
a share option scheme for eligible employees (including
directors) to provide incentives to those with outstanding
performance and contribution to the Group.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

# 5L SRITRAB S B

Biographical details of the Directors and senior executive
are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Xiaolin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 34, is an executive
director, the chief executive officer of the Company
and a member of each of of Nomination Committee
and Investment and Management Committee. Mr. Wu
joined us on 16 June 2015. Mr. Wu graduated from
Huaibei Normal University with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Information and Computer Science. Mr. Wu
is currently serving as the legal representative and the
general manager of RIIMKEE NEERERA A
and a supervisor of the Shenzhen Cancare Commercial
Development Company Limited ORI EEEREEERES
R A RA]).

Mr. Wu is currently an executive director of Mega Medical
Technology Limited (stock code: 876), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Shi Liangsheng (“Mr. Shi”) aged 33, is an executive
director of the Company and a member of Investment and
Management Committee. Mr. Shi joined us on 28 July
2015. Mr. Shi graduated from Yang-En University with a
bachelor degree in laws in 2007, and obtained a master
degree in laws from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2009. He is a qualified lawyer in the People’'s Republic
of China and has acquired the professional qualification
of holding estate agent (individual) license in Hong Kong.
He is currently a director of Hong Kong Assets & Equity
Exchange Co., Ltd., which mainly serves as a platform for
assets andequity exchange in the Greater China Region.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

# 5L SRITRAB S B

Mr. Shi has working experience in law firm(s) in the
Mainland China, and is familiar with the legal system of
the People’s Republic of China. He had participated in
projects on mergers and acquisitions and IPOs, etc. and
therefore has rich experience in commercial legal services
in the capital market of the Mainland China. He is also
acquainted with the legal system of Hong Kong.

Mr. Shi previously worked in the legal department of
3D-Gold Jewellery business segment of Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (SEHK stock code: 2882),
and had also taken up the role of senior assistant to the
vice president for three years, and hence he is familiar
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), as
well as corporate operation, management and risk control
matters in respect of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wen Wenfeng (“Mr. Wen"), aged 25, is an executive
director of the Company, a member of Remuneration
Committee and the chairman of Investment and
Management Committee. Mr. Wen joined us on 31 July
2015. Mr. Wen graduated from the Guangzhou Jinan
University in 2012 with a bachelor degree in Management
and a bachelor degree in Economics. He then obtained a
Master of Science degree in Finance from the University
of Leicester in 2013. From 2013 to 2015, he worked as
an Assistant Vice President of Mayfair Pacific Financial
Group Limited. He is the Chairman of the Board of
Lamtex Securities Limited and a Director of SZ Enterprise
Union Financial Group Limited. He was licensed under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance as an representative
on regulated activities and a present Managing Director
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Youth Exchange Promotion
Association and a director of Youth-Chinese Entrepreneur

Fund Limited (FESFRIZZESER AR,
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

# 5L SRITRAB S B

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (“Mr. Lung”), aged 58,
joined us on 31 July, 2015, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lung is a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBUAH B &% EZ 8®) and Justice
of the Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Mr. Lung joined Manulife (International) Limited in 1990,
and has achieved outstanding results. He currently serves
as the Senior Regional Director and leads a team of over
800 insurance agents and financial planners. Actively
involved in community services, Mr. Lung was amongst
one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong
Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of The Outstanding
Young Persons Association in 2003 to 2004. Mr. Lung was
awarded the Medal of Honour and Bronze Bauhinia Star
by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2001 and 2014. Furthermore, Mr. Lung is a
Committee Member of the Board of Governors of Hong
Kong Shue Yan University, a Member of the Guangdong
Daya Bay Nuclear Power Station/Lingao Nuclear Power
Station, Nuclear Safety Consultative Committee, the
Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Youth Exchange
Promotion United Association and a Chairperson of
“Passing on the Torch” National Education Activity Series
of Education Bureau.

Mr. Lung is currently an independent non-executive
director of Tysan Holdings Limited (stock code: 687).
He was an independent non-executive director of China
Investment Development Limited (stock code: 204) until
his resignation in May 2012. He was an independent non-
executive director of Mega Medical Technology Limited
(formerly known as Wing Tai Investment Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 876) until his retirement in June 2015. He
was an independent non-executive director of Sky Forever
Supply Chain Management Group Limited (stock code:
8047) until his resignation in July 2015.
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Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), aged 31, joined us
on 14 March, 2016, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yu, is currently the chairman of BrFE= 2
EE AR AT, which is principally engaged in investment
in and development of energy, mining, environmental-
preservation, real estate, and tourism businesses. He is also
a director and shareholder of BRFaFR EFEERERE AR A
7], which main line of business focuses on research and
development of technologies on new energy, installation
of pipe-line infrastructures, and sale of gas utensil.
Furthermore, he is a supervisor of SEEMMELNEZMRA
AR EEAT], which principally carries on the following
businesses: construction and re-construction of city gas
infrastructures; design and engineering of expansion work
and related installation and development management;
transportation, sale, provision of aftersale service, research
and development of technologies and provision of
consultancy service in relation to city gas; construction and
operation of various types of gas station; sale of petroleum
and natural gas related equipment; and, construction,
operation and management of compressed natural gas
projects.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) aged 66, joined us
on 28 July 2015, is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of each of the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Investment and
Management Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive
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Dr. Loke has over 40 years' experience in accounting
and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
Degree from University of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a
Fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales; The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited
and serves as an independent non-executive director of
V1 Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 82), Matrix Holdings
Limited (SEHK stock code: 1005), China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 39), Mega
Medical Technology Limited (SEHK stock code: 876), China
Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 445),
Winfair Investment Company Limited (SEHK stock code:
287), SCUD Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 1399), Zhong
An Real Estate Limited (SEHK stock code: 672), Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 882),
China Household Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 692),
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 976) and
Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 1619),
which are all companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Tse Long (“Mr. Tse), aged 59, joined us on 28
July 2015, is the member of each of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tse graduated from the
Guangzhou Jinan University in 2012 with a diploma in Social
Work. He is the owner of Guangdong Xingda Transport
Company (&3 B85 /2 7)) and Teem China Development
Limited, and a director of Allied Treasure Development
Limited. Apart from personal business, Mr. Tse has engaged
in various social commitments. From 2012 till now, Mr. Tse
is the Chairman of Hong Kong Guangdong Transportation
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Association and the Hong Kong Council Convenor of the
Guangdong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association.
Since 2006, he has been the Deputy Secretary-General
of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations. Save as disclosed herein, as at the date of
this report, Mr. Tse (i) does not have any relationship with
any directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company; (ii) does not
have any interests in the shares in the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong); (iii) does not hold
other positions with the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iv)
has not held any directorship in any public listed companies
in the last three years preceding the date of this report.

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin ("Mr. Zeng"”), aged 71, joined us
on 16 June 2015, is the chairman of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and a member
of each of Investment and Management Committee and
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng holds a
Higher Diploma in Chinese Language fromSouth China
Normal University (ZEmMANEEFE), and attended the
“Executive Master of Business Administration Course
Seminars” organised by the Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan
(University) College (1L KZ5EmME0T). Mr. Zeng is the
vice president of the Shenzhen Cancare Group (R
HEEETEEE) and the vice chairman of the Shenzhen
Cancare Group's Advisory Board (FYITASEEEEE
BEFARZE®). In 1998, Mr. Zeng, in the capacity as the
General Office director (##AZ==*1E) of the Guangdong
Provincial Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“GPCPPCC") (EXRAEH), was assigned
by the GPCPPCC to station at the then Guangdong
Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (E§{¥(E£E)ER A F)
to act as a liaison between the GPCPPCC, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government, other related
groups and associations in Hong Kong. In 1999, Mr. Zeng
was also appointed as the assistant inspector for the
General Office of the GPCPPCC.
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Mr. Zeng was appointed as the Public Relations Deputy
director (ABIEPEIEEE) in 1999 and General Affairs
Department Deputy director (873 &|ZK) in 2003 of the
Federation of Hong Kong-Guangdong Community (F# &
HitE42=). He was responsible for fostering relationships
with the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government and other groups and associations in Hong
Kong. Mr. Zeng is also a senior researcher of the China
Asia-Pacific Research Centre for Economic Development
(FR B g8 A AP 25 R AT 9T AR L) and visiting researcher of the
expert committee of the China Traditional Culture Institute
University (7 BB 227 A ).

Mr. Zeng was an independent non-executive director of
Mega Medical Technology Limited (formerly known as
Wing Tai Investment Holdings Limited) (stock code: 876)
until his retirement in June 2015.

SENIOR EXECUTIVE
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley (“Ms. Hui"), is the company
secretary of the Group. Ms. Hui joined us on 16 June 2015.

Ms. Hui is a practicing accountant in Hong Kong and is
currently a director of a CPA firm and a securities firm.
She is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board considers that good corporate governance
of the Company is crucial to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company and to enhance the
performance of the Group. The Board and management
of the Company are committed to enhancing corporate
governance standard, in compliance with all relevant code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “"Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2015, complied with the relevant code provisions of the
Code (“Code Provisions”), save for the deviations disclosed
below in this report.

1. THE BOARD

The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprised three executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The profile of
all Directors are set out on pages 25 to 31, where
relationship among members of the Board (including
financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship(s), if any) are also disclosed.

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions of the Company in
accordance with the Code, including determining
the Group’s corporate governance policies, and
reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance
practices of the Group.
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The Board is responsible for the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective
of enhancing shareholders value and presenting a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in the annual and interim reports, and of other
inside information announcements and accounting
policies, and reports to regulators any information
required to be disclosed pursuant to the relevant
statutory requirements.

The Board has fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibility towards the Company and the Group.
Other responsibilities include, formulation of
the Group’s overall strategy and policies, setting
corporate and management targets and key
operational initiatives, monitoring and control of
operational and financial performance, and approval
of budgets and major capital expenditures, major
investments, material acquisitions and disposals
of assets, corporate or financial restructuring,
significant operational, financial and management
matters.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of the
business of the Group to the management of the
relevant principal subsidiaries and certain specific
responsibilities to audit committee, remuneration
committee, nomination committee and the
Investment and Management Committee (the
“IMC"). These committees have specific functions
and authority to examine issues and report to the
Board with their recommendations (if appropriate).
The final decision rests with the Board, unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of
the relevant committee.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance cover for liabilities in respect of legal
actions against Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) provides the Directors with updates on
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. Any Director
may request the Company Secretary to arrange for
independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to assist the Directors to effectively
discharge their duties to the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the
important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has to provide an annual confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company. The
Board considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance
and regulatory matters. There is an established
procedure for Directors to obtain independent advice
where necessary at the expense of the Company in
discharging of their duties to the Company.
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The Board meets at least four times each year to
review the overall strategy and to monitor the
operation as well as the financial performance of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Board held 31 regular meetings. Additional
meetings may be convened to approve any notifiable
transaction and shares issuance. Notice of at least
fourteen days is served for regular board meetings.
Reasonable notice would be given for all other
special board meetings which are not held regularly.
The chairman of the Board is primarily responsible
for drawing up and approving the agenda for each
board meetings in consultation with all Directors
and ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meetings. Agenda and
accompanying board papers in respect of board
meetings are sent out in full to all Directors within
a reasonable time before the date of every board
meetings to allow them to review these documents
in advance. Minutes of all board meetings,
the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee, the audit committee and the IMC are
kept by the Company Secretary and the Directors
may inspect these minutes at any time during office
hours upon giving reasonable notice. Minutes of all
board meetings, and meetings of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee, the audit
committee and the IMC, have recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the
board committees, including any concerns raised
by Directors or dissenting view expressed. Draft
and final versions of these minutes were sent to al
Directors for their comment and records respectively,
normally within 10 days after the relevant meeting
was held.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Board held meetings to deal with, inter alia, the
following matters regarding corporate governance:

reviewed the corporate governance practices;

- reviewed and monitored the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

- reviewed and monitored the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with

the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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TEERRE

The following is the attendance record of each Director at

TREJFRNEBREZTHFE

N
SR

the Board meetings held during the year: FOEE
Attendance of
Board meeting
in person
FEHEESS
Name of Board member EEgRERE BREZRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, JP (Chairman) MBI KTt (F/E)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015 (RZZE—RF AT XBEZE
and resigned with effect from EKRZT—RF=A+MBBT)
14 March 2016) 18/19
Mr. Wu Xiaolin (Chief Executive Officer) RN (TTEAEE)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015 (RZZ—REFERATBEZER
as an executive director and the chief WITEERR-_T—RAFEA=1T—8H
executive officer with effect from BERERITHAER)
31 July 2015) 19/19
Mr. Shi Liangsheng BRALE
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE—RFELAZTNRAEZEE) 19/19
Mr. Wen Wenfeng B FE S
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZZE—RFLtA=T—RAEZEE) 12/12
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace EAD A Gun
(redesignated from Executive Director to (R=ZE—REA+HBH
Non-Executive Director and ceased to be the WITERTRIFNTESELTH
chairlady with effect from 15 June 2015, BREF RZE—RFtHA=+—H
resigned as Non-Executive Director with BEFHNES)
effect from 31 July 2015) 3/11
Mr. Xing Cheng TR 55 4
(resigned with effect from 31 May 2015) (R—E—HFHA=1+—HEHTL) 3/8
Mr. He Xiaowu B L4
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (RZE—REXATHEE) 2/9
Mr. Lo Wing Sang BoxEfE
(resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZE—RF+A=-+\HEHE) 14/18
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Attendance of
Board meeting

in person
FEHE
Name of Board member EEgREHR EEg2RE
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George BEFRALAE
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZE—RFtA=+T—RHEZT) 11/12
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace EAD A Gun
(resigned with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZE—RF+A=1+—HEHTE) 1/6
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EEETE
(resigned with effect from 9 July 2015) (R—E—HF+ANB&EMT) 3/17
Independent Non-executive Directors VHHITES
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEMSEE
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015) (R—ZE—HF A+ BEZT) 18/19
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam [Z975¥7 N
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE—RFLAZTNRAEZEE) 12/13
Mr. Tse Long AR A
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE—RELAZTNRAEZEE) 12/13
Ms. Tang Man Yi HEgEL L
(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 (RZZE—REATHEZER
and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) RZE—RAFtAZ+/\BEE) 5/8
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew DR AT 4
(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 (R=ZZE—REF"ATHEREZER
and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) RZZE—RFEAZTN\AET) 4/7
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP fR¥EE BBS - KTt
(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015) (R—ZE—HFA+BEMT) 7/12
Mr. Zeng Qingkai BEISLEE
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015) (RZE—RFA+RHBET) 7/11
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing BEcE
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (R—ZE—HFXA+HEIET) 8/10
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The following is the attendance record of each Director

TERHINFABREFTHEARRBRRAK

at the general meetings of the Company held during the @ VR
year:
Attendance of
general meeting
in person
Name of Board member EEgRans FEHERRAGZRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, JP (Chairman) B B K S 4t ()
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015 (RZZE—RF AT XBEZE
and resigned with effect from EKRZT—RF=A+MBBT)
14 March 2016) 11
Mr. Wu Xiaolin (Chief Executive Officer) RN (TTEAEE)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015 (RZZ—REFERATBEZER
as an executive director and the chief WITEERR-_T—RAFEA=1T—8H
executive officer with effect from BERERITHAER)
31 July 2015) 11
Mr. Shi Liangsheng BRALE
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE—REFLAZTNRAEZEE) 1/1
Mr. Wen Wenfeng B F A
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZZE—RFLA=T—REZEE) 1/1
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace EAD A Gun
(redesignated from Executive Director to (R=ZE—REA+HBH
Non-Executive Director and ceased to be the WITERTRIFNTESELTH
chairlady with effect from 15 June 2015, AEXFE NZE—RF+A=+—H
resigned as Non-Executive Director with BEFHES)
effect from 31 July 2015) 171
Mr. Xing Cheng TR 5 A
(resigned with effect from 31 May 2015) (R—E—HFHA=1+—HEHTL) 11
Mr. He Xiaowu B4
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (RZE—RERXATHEE) A
Mr. Lo Wing Sang BoxERE
(resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE—RFLAZTN\RHET) 1/1
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Attendance of
general meeting

in person
BELE
Name of Board member EEgREHR RERKEZXH
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George BEFRRLAE
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZE—HFtA=T—RHEZE) 1/1
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace BE T
(resigned with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZZ2E—RFtA=1T—H#ET) 0/0
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EERTE
(resigned with effect from 9 July 2015) (R—E—HF+ANB&EMT) 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors VHHITES
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEMSEE
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015) (RZE—RAFATBEZMHF) 0/1
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam PGS T
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZ2E—RFtAZ+tN\REZT) 1/1
Mr. Tse Long AR THE
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE—RELAZTNRAEZEE) 0/1
Ms. Tang Man Vi HEgEL L
(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 (RZE—RHF A THEZER
and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) RZZE—RF+tAZ+/\BEHT) 0/0
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew ADRATSE &
(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 (RZE—RAFNATHAEZAER
and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) RZE—RF+tAZ+/\BEHT) 0/0
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP PR¥EE BBS * AF#+
(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015) (R=ZE—RFAT+T/NAET) 0/1
Mr. Zeng Qingkai YESl L
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015) (RZZ2E—RHEFEAT+HEBET) 1/1
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing LB 4 &=
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (RZE—RERXATHEE) A
Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive  jpyeccmiiasr SA 6716 B IEH TS

directors and other non-executive directors, as equal Board
members, should, among other things, attend general
meetings of the Company. Due to other important business

SREMFNTESEREEMESTESR

RAEMUNEZEXRE  BHFE(ETE
) ARBINBKRRAE - AR EHRBERER

engagements at the relevant time, not all independent non-
executive director and non-executive director attended
the annual general meeting held on 26 March 2015. Due
to other important business engagements at the relevant
time, Mr. Tse Long and Mr. Zeng Zhaolin did not attend the
special general meeting held on 31 October 2015.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace
(“Ms. Jin") resigned as the chairlady of the Company
(the “Chairlady”) on 15 June 2015 and Mr. Lo Wing
Sang (“Mr. Lo") resigned as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (the “CEO") on 28 July 2015. Mr. Lam
Kwok Hing Wilfred was appointed as the chairman of
the Company on 16 June 2015 and Mr. Wu Xiaolin was
appointed as the CEO of the Company on 31 July 2015.
Mr. Wu, as the CEO, is responsible for managing and
smoothing the business operation of the Group while Mr.
Lam, as the Chairman, is responsible for leading the Board
in overall strategic development of the Group.

The Chairman and the CEO are separate individuals with
segregated roles and have no relationship with each other.
The Board believes that there was an effective segregation
of duties between the Chairman and the CEO.

The Board considers the above arrangement to be
appropriate for the Company as it can preserve the
consistent leadership culture of the Company and allow
efficient discharge of the functions of the chief executive
officer. The Board believes that a balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the Board which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
including two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs").
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The number of INEDs throughout the year ended 31
December 2015 has met the minimum requirement of
the Listing Rules and represented at least one-third of the
total Board members. Further, at least one of the INEDs
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an
annual written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
reviewed their independence based on such confirmation
and considers all of them remaining independent.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting at least once every three years
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Xiaolin

Mr. Wen Wenfeng
Mr. Shi Liangsheng

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George
Mr. Yu Shaoheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

Mr. Tse Long

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin
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All independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified as such in all of the Company’s corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Company adopted the board diversity policy on 28 August
2013. The policy set out that the nomination committee
of the Company reviews and assesses the composition
of the Board, makes recommendations to the Board on
appointment of new directors of the Company, conduct
of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board in
order to achieve the objective of the board diversity policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the diversity of
the Board and will review the board diversity policy from
time to time to ensure that the policy will be implemented
effectively.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction
package containing all key legal and Listing Rules’
requirements as well as guidelines on the responsibilities
and obligations to be observed by a director. The package
will also include the latest published financial reports of
the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.
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The Company also continuously updates Directors on
the latest developments regarding listing rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their
awareness of best corporate governance practices.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any new
Director appointed by the Board, whether to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board, is subject
to retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next
following general meeting of the Company following his/
her appointment. At every annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
retire from office and being eligible for re-election.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders at annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the
Board has established the following committees with
defined terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2015, the Company’s Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, Mr. Tse Long
and Mr. Zeng Zhaolin. Dr Loke Yu was appointed as the
chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee oversees the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control system
of the Company. The management of the Company is
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements while the external auditor is responsible for
auditing the Group’s financial statements. Members
of the audit committee assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing an independent review of the
financial statements, supervising the Company’s system
of financial reporting and internal control. The audit
committee presents a report to the Board on its findings
after each audit committee meeting.
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The written terms of reference, which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, are regularly
reviewed and was updated by the Board to comply with
Code Provision C.3.3 of the Code in 2015. The Audit
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015. The attendance of each member is set out
as follows:

X

—E R ESSTHENYERE
MEZZE SR NERENEERESR
A SPSFRMENE C 3.3 1% - BZEB
EREBE_E—RAFT+_A=+T—HIHF
ERITNRSE - SKEZHEERNT :

=

Number of
meetings
attended

Name of audit committee member ENREEHERE HEERRY
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (Chairman) FEEMEL (FE)

(appointed as chairman with effect (RZE-RELA=T/\H

from 28 July 2015) BZERTRE) 2/3
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEMLE

(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015) (RZZE-AF AT BEZMA) 33
Mr. Tse Long HOR A

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE-AFLAZT/\BEZE) 33
Ms. Tang Man Yi HEggEat

(appointed as chairlady with effect from 10 June 2015 (RZZE-RF ATHEZERIRE

and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) RRZE-RFLAZ1+/\HEE) 0/0
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew {ARATIT &

(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 and (F@Zﬁ—ﬁix‘_\ﬂ THREZAER

resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) F-AFtAZT/\BEA) 0/0
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP 9@% BBS * At

(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015) (RZZ—RFATHEE) 11
Mr. Zeng Qingkai DENLE

(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015) (RZZ—RF A THHEE) 11
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing BERE%E

(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (R=ZT—RF A ATHET) 11
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The audit committee reviewed and discussed with the
management and independent external auditor the 2015
consolidated financial statements included in this report.
In this regard, the audit committee held discussions with
management with regard to new or changes in accounting
policies that had been applied, and significant judgments
of the management which affected the Group’s financial
statements. The audit committee received reports and
met with the external auditor to discuss the general
scope of their audit work, including the impact of new or
changes in accounting policies that had been applied and
their assessment of the Group’s internal controls. Based
on these review and discussions, and the report of the
external auditor, the audit committee recommended the
Board to approve the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

During the year, the audit committee also reviewed the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2015 and recommended the
Board to approve the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.

The members of the audit committee considered the
appointment of external auditor, their audit fees and
recommended the Board to seek shareholders’ approval for
the re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as the
Group's external auditor for the year ending 31 December
2016.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
with terms consistent with the Code Provisions A.5.1 to
A.5.6. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee have included the duties as set out in the
relevant Code Provisions. As at 31 December 2015, the
nomination committee comprises three INEDs, and one
executive director namely Mr. Zeng Zhaolin. Dr. Loke Yu
alias Loke Hoi Lam, Mr. Tse Long and Mr. Wu Xiaolin.
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least
once a year. The Nomination Committee, among other
things, review the composition of the Board, consider the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors,
the retirement of directors and the resignation and the
appointment of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee held five meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2015. The attendance of each

member is set out as follows:

Name of nomination
committee member

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (Chairman)
(appointed as chairman with effect
from 16 June 2015)

Mr. Tse Long

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015

Mr. Wu Xiaolin

(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015

Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew

(appointed as chairman on 15 June 2015 redesignated
from chairman to member on 16 June 2015
and resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)

Ms. Tang Man Yi

(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 and
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015

Mr. Zeng Qingkai

(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015)

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)

Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP

(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)

RFE+-A=+—HItFE
ERITHAREE  SKEZH
Number of
meetings
attended
REZEEHRERS HESENEY
BEMEE(FE)
(R=Z—RE A+1H
BZERTRE) 1
HREE
(RZE-RF+ A=+ \BEZF) 1
BEgiE L
(RZE-RF+ A=+ \BEZF) 1
REMTE
(RZE-REF+A=+—HEZF) 0/0
RATEAE
(RZZE-RF ATHREZEARE
B RZE-RAFX AT BHERE
RERZEENKE KR ZT—hE
tAZ+N\B#EE) 11
BHELT
(R=ZZ—RE ATHEZIR
RZE-AF+t A=+ /\BEHE) 0/2
BEINLE
(RZE-REAATHART) 12
BLBILE
(RZE-RE A+HET) 212
& BRS - ATML
(RZE—RFE A+ HET) 2/3
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
to deal with matters of remuneration and compensation
arrangement of Directors and senior management. The
written terms of reference of the remuneration committee
have included the duties as set out in the relevant Code
Provisions. As at 31 December 2015, the remuneration
committee comprises three INEDs and one executive director,
namely, Mr. Zeng Zholin, Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam,
Mr. Tse Long and Mr. Wen Wenfeng. Mr Zeng Zholin was
appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
follow the guidelines set out in the Code and it is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
shall meet at least once a year.
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The Remuneration Committee meetings held five meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2015. The attendance
of each member is set out as follows:

HE-_ZT—AFT-A=+—HILEE"
FMEESERITERGR - SHEZH
FERMT

Number of
meetings
Name of remuneration attended
committee member FHEEERERE HEERRY
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (Chairman) LEMEE(FE)
(appointed as chairman with effect (RZF—RENAT+RH
from 16 June 2015) BRERTR) 3/3
Mr. Tse Long HhR A
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE-RFELAZT/\BEZHE) 33
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam FeAmET
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE-RFELAZT/\BEZHE) 2/3
Mr. Wen Wenfeng mXFLE
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015) (RZZE-AFELA=T—REZH) 212
Ms. Tang Man Yi HeggEat
(appointed with effect from 10 June 2015 and (RZZE-RE ATHEZER
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) RZE-RFtAZ+/\BE) 01
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew {ADRAT ST &
(appointed with effect from 15 June 2015 and (F@Zﬁ—ﬁix‘_\ﬂ THREZER
resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) F-AFtAZT/\BEA) 11
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP %% BBS - AT #T
(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015) (RZZ—RFRATHEE) 12
Mr. Zeng Qingkai TEINLE
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015) (RZT-—RF ATHHER) 11
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing BERE%E
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (R=ZZT—RF A ATHET) 11
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Investment and Management Committee

The Board established the IMC on 15 August 2013. As at
31 December 2015, the IMC comprises three executive
Directors and two independent non-executive Directors
namely, Mr. Wen Wenfeng, Mr. Wu Xiaolin, Mr. Shi
Liangsheng, Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam and Mr. Zeng
Zhaolin. Mr. Wen Wenfeng was appointed as the chairman
of the IMC.

The principal role and function of the IMC includes:

- act as a delegate for the Board generally;

- make decisions and resolutions, and to exercise all
powers of the Board on all matters of the Group
in relation to its daily operation and investment
activities; and

- make recommendations to the Board concerning

matters of corporate significance not otherwise dealt
by any other committees of the Board.
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The IMC held six meetings during the year ended 31 #HE-_Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE
December 2015. The attendance of each memberissetout HERBEEZESC BT NAEH - &K
as follows: B HERNT
Number of
meetings
attended
Name of the IMC member REREBRZEEHENE HESBRY
Mr. Wen Wenfeng (Chairman) BXERE(LE)
(appointed as chairman with effect (RZZE-RFtA=T—H
from 31 July 2015) BZEATR) 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, JP PRED AT i+
(appointed as chairman with effect (RZF-REA A+ BEZEA
from 16 June 2015, redesignated from IF -RZE-REtLRA=T—H
Chairman to member on 31 July 2015 HERATAZESRE
and resigned with effect from 16 September 2015) RRZE-RFNATBEE) 11
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEMLE
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015) (RZZE-AF AT BEZME) 11
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam FeAMET
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015) (RZZE-AFLAZT/\BEZE) 11
Mr. Wu Xiaolin REMELE
(appointed with effect from 16 September 2015) (RZZE-RFAA T BEZME) 7
Mr. Shi Liangsheng AR %5
(appointed with effect from 16 September 2015) (RZZE-AFAAT BEZE) 7
Ms. Tang Man Yi HEggEat
(appointed as chairlady on 10 June 2015, (RZZE-RF ATHEZEXE
redesignated from chairlady to member on 16 June RZE—RFXATH
2015, resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) HEREREEENE
R-E-RAF+LA-1+/\BEHE) 0/0
Mr. Lo Wing Sang BxERE
(resigned with effect from 28 July 2015) (R=E-RFLA-F+/\BET) 5/5
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing BERELE
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015) (RZZ2—RF ATHET) 5/5
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal controls of the Company and for reviewing its
effectiveness on an annual basis under Code Provision
C.2.1. The Group's internal control systems comprise an
established organizational structure and comprehensive
policies and standards. Procedures have been designed to
safeqguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
to maintain proper accounting records, for the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for
publication, and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The purpose of the Group’s internal
control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Group’s internal control system includes following
major components:

(1) Review an organizational and governance structure
with defined responsibility and delegated authority;

(2)  Set up stringent policies and procedures for the
appraisal, review and approval of major capital and
recurrent expenditures; and

(3)  Review report of operations results against budgets
to the Board regularly.

The Board, through the audit committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
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PERFORMANCE OF INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

The Company has adopted the rules and procedures on
INEDs" work. The Company has four INEDs, representing
more than one-third of the total number of the Directors
as required under the Listing Rules. The INEDs are
professionals with extensive experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business management. Mr.
Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing has appropriate accounting and
financial experience. The INEDs do not hold other positions
in the Company other than being members of the board
committees.

During the reporting period, the INEDs had no objections
to the resolutions made by the Board.

During the year, the INEDs earnestly and diligently
performed their duties in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Bye-laws of the Company.
The INEDs actively attended board meetings during the
reporting period, and reviewed documents presented
by the Company. They also provided professional and
constructive advice on the Company’s major decisions.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
INEDs about their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the
INEDs are completely independent of the Company, its
substantial shareholders and its affiliates and comply fully
with the requirements concerning the INEDs under the
Listing Rules.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the
consolidated financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. They do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the content of the auditor’s report.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the external auditor
of the Group and provided audit services and non-audit
services to the Group. On 7 December 2015, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the external
auditor of the Group and Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
was appointed as the external auditor of the Group. The
Board has accepted the recommendation from the audit
committee on re-appointing Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
as the external auditor of the Group.

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor for the provision of services
are as follows:

SMNES A B

SNBR BN EERRBEERITIEZE
R HEAWBERRFHBILEL IR
BAREAFEFIOKEMARR TR
R¥E - BRULASN - SNEERZ AN 2 5 &
BIEEM B - SNEZBE T ERHERS
EZARRREMEMALE ESAEEM
BfE-

REBEE-FT-—RA+-_A=1t—HLFE"
BHeMERNSMTEZRERAKHE
ZONEERR B - Y R A EEREEZRS
RIFEECRE R_TE—RAF+_A+
B 28 e BERy staTR I ANKE
SNEEAZ BB B S K R [E R E @ FT R E A5 FT
ERAPEZESAEEINSZHE - &
EECRMNERZECAMERTELRZE
SMEBABRATDAAER 2 IMNER
BUAD 2 323 o

R BLIRGRIS 14 R R 2 RSN
BEREO BN S 0T -

2015
—E-HF
HK$' 000
FET

Audit services EZIRTE
— Annual audit — FEEZ 650
— Major transaction —FERS 310
Non-audit services IEFIZARTE 20
980

56 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Corporate Governance Report
PEREARE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Group’s financial statements in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The responsibilities of the Directors are
to prepare the financial accounts for each financial
period which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. The Directors also acknowledge that
the publication of the financial statements should be
distributed to the shareholders of the Company in a timely
manner. In preparing the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2015, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors
are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out by the Stock
Exchange in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries to
all Directors, all Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s own code of conduct during the review year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
(i) Convening a special general meeting by

shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, any
one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company by mail at Room 204-205,
2/F., OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, N0.93-103 Wing
Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

(ii) Putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders shall make a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company by mail at Room 204-205,
2/F., OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, No0.93-103 Wing
Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, specifying
their shareholding information, their contact details
and the proposals they intend to put forward
at the general meetings regarding any specified
transaction/business, together with supporting
documents.
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(iii) Putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary by mail at Room 204-205, 2/F., OfficePlus
@Sheung Wan, No.93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary forwards
communications relating to matters within the
Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business
matters to the IMC of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION

The Company is responsible for ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In order to fulfill this responsibility,
the Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
the investment community at large. The Company
is committed to continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors with the relevant information on its business
in a timely and accurate manner, subject to the relevant
regulatory requirements. In order to ensure effective,
clear and accurate communication with investors, all
corporate communications are arranged and handled by
the executive Directors and designated senior executives
according to established practices and procedures of the
Company.
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The Board uses annual general meetings and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet
and communicate with the shareholders. Registered
shareholders are notified by post for these general
meetings, and the notice of meeting contains the agenda
and the proposed resolutions. Any registered shareholder
is entitled to attend the annual and special general
meetings, provided that their shares have been recorded
in the register of shareholders. The Board also encourages
shareholders to participate in these general meetings to
maintain an on-going dialogue with the shareholders.

Extensive information about the Company’s activities is
provided in its interim and annual reports, which are sent
to shareholders, analysts and other interested parties.
The Company’'s news releases, announcements and
publications are circulated to all major news media in a
timely and accurate manner.

Separate resolutions will be proposed by the Chairman
in respect of each substantially separate issue at the
Company's forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Chairman, and the chairperson of the audit committee, the
nomination committee, remuneration committee and the
IMC will attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to
answer questions of shareholders.
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COMPANY SECRETARY'’S TRAINING

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. The Company
Secretary provided her training records to the Company
indicating she took more than 15 hours of relevant
professional development by means of attending in-
house briefings, attending seminars and reading relevant
guideline materials.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY
During the year under review, there were no changes in
the Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-
laws. A copy of the latest version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BACKGROUND OF ESG REPORTING

China New Energy Power Group Limited (“CNEPGL”"
or the “Company”) is a listed company on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), with stock code 1041. The Board
of CNEPGL recognizes the importance of having a good
standard of corporate governance and maintaining an
effective corporate governance framework which in
turn will enhance the reputation of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”). It has also
supported and committed to a full range of Corporate
Social Responsibilities (“CSR") activities taking our
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) standards
to the next higher level within the Group. Our strategy is
to strengthen the infrastructure, internal engagements and
external partnerships to create true and tangible values to
our stakeholders through our ESG program.

GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE AS THE BASIS

Based on the firmly rooted philosophy of strict compliance
with law and regulations, CNEPGL has established a modern
corporate governance structure with the Board of Directors
and a number of Board Committees set up, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Investment and Management Committee,
each has its own clear defined terms of reference to
undertake its own responsibilities, execute check and
balance independent operations.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders’ right of getting information, speaking,
inquiry and voting are fully safeguarded during the general
meetings of the Company. Generally, the Company holds
general meetings in its Hong Kong operational office in
Sheung Wan. Location is easily accessible by shareholders.
A communication channel for public enquiries is also
available in the corporate website of CNEPGL under the
Company’s Shareholders Communication Policy.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The current Board of the Company comprises 8 members.
The board members are well diversified considering
a numbers of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background and
professional experience, and taking into account the
Company’s business model and special needs. Directors
of the Company have extensive practical experience in
macro economy, corporate finance and accounting, legal
affairs and strategic management, which ensures the
practical and effective decision-making of the Board. The
independent non-executive directors are also fully aware
of the necessary requirements to ensure their effective
fulfillment of duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Committees. Each Committee
performs different and unique functions in operation and
supervision for the Company with independent decision
making ability. The Company engages independent
auditors to audit its financial statements and the internal
control areas in relation to the preparation of financial
statements, and has been improving the overall risk
management system to effectively avoid the conflict of
interests among the corporate governance bodies.
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND PERSONAL GROWTH
CNEPGL believes that people are its most valuable asset
to the Company. We engage our staff with trainings and
career development opportunities. CNEPGL strives to be
a caring employer and encourages work-life balance,
and communicates with staff to enhance their sense of
belonging and morale. The Group’s training goals are
to support organizational development, facilitate team
synergy and enhance individual competence. During the
year, a wide range of trainings are being provided for staff
attendance, including topics on industrial knowledge,
marketing strategies, corporate social responsibilities, rules
and regulations, moral development, management skills
and more. The Group has established an education subsidy
for encouraging our staff to pursue continuing education.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

The Group strives to work for the sustainable development
of Hong Kong and make positive contributions to the
community. The Group promotes a healthy and active
lifestyle in the community through participation in
charitable events and forming its own volunteer team.
Throughout the years, the Group has actively supported
a variety of charity and community programs, and it
continues to work hand-in-hand with its staff to make
meaningful contributions to society.

During the year, the Group has participated the following
social community services and charity activities to
discharge our corporate social responsibilities. Some
highlights are as follows:

- Supported " EHEFEEZZE /B, the donation thereof
are allocated to EitaEfEZEZE & which aims to
improve local people’s (particularly elderly and
the mentally retarded children) well being of poor
communities in the Northern Guangdong province
and to alleviate poverty.
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— Supported donation to “Hong Kong-Guangdong
Youth Exchange Promotion Association”

To promote exchanges in various fields between the two
places adolescents, teenagers enhance our national, ethnic
identity, promote Chinese culture.

To promote economic, scientific and professional exchanges
between the two places of youth, speed up economic
integration of Guangdong and Hong Kong.

To understand the motherland, Hong Kong and Guangdong
for the youth to find a new development world in terms
of employment, entrepreneurship, education and cultural
exchanges, we encourage young people to carry forward
the fine tradition of hard work

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND EMISSION

The Group does not operate any industrial production or
have any factory facilities. Given the major businesses of
the Group is being properties and securities investment,
the major gas emission of the Group is arising from
transportation and electricity usage. Our activities of
business operations have no significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which
includes a discussion of the uncertainties and opportunities
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the year, an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business and discussion on the relationships with
its stakeholders, can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis contained in
this annual report. The review forms part contained in this
directors’ report.

A discussion of environmental, social and governance
matters, covering the Group’s environmental policies and
performance is set out in Corporate Governance Report
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 32 to 61 and pages 62 to 65 respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
rules and regulations and the impact of non-compliance
with such rules and regulations on the business. The Group
has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to
maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has complied,
to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 80 and 81.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
and share options during the year are set out in notes
22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company has no reserves available for distribution as
at 31 December 2015.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, JP (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015 and
resigned with effect from 14 March 2016)

Mr. Wu Xiaolin (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015
as an executive director and the chief executive officer
with effect from 31 July 2015)

Mr. Shi Liangsheng
(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)

Mr. Wen Wenfeng
(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015)

Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace
(redesignated from executive director to
non-executive director and ceased to be
the chairlady with effect from 15 June
2015, resigned as non-executive director
with effect from 31 July 2015)

Mr. Xing Cheng
(resigned with effect from 31 May 2015)

Mr. He Xiaowu
(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)

Mr. Lo Wing Sang
(resigned with effect from 28 July 2015)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George

(appointed with effect from 31 July 2015)
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace

(resigned with effect from 31 July 2015)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang

(resigned with effect from 9 July 2015)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin

(appointed with effect from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Mr. Tse Long

(appointed with effect from 28 July 2015)
Ms. Tang Man Yi

(appointed with effect from 10 June

2015 and resigned with effect from

28 July 2015)
Mr. Ho Long Chin Matthew

(appointed with effect from 15 June

2015 and resigned with effect from

28 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai, BBS, JP

(resigned with effect from 16 June 2015)
Mr. Zeng Qingkai

(resigned with effect from 15 June 2015)
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

(resigned with effect from 10 June 2015)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wu Xiaolin (“Mr. Wu") has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 16 June
2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Mr. Wu is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$360,000
per annum and the Chief Executive Officer’'s salary of
HK$600,000 per annum which are determined by arm'’s
length negotiation between Mr. Wu and the Company and
with reference to his duties and responsibilities.
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Mr. Shi Liangsheng (“Mr. Shi”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 28 July
2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Mr. Shi is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$480,000
per annum which is determined by arm’s length
negotiation between Mr. Shi and the Company and with
reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Wen Wenfeng (“Mr. Wen") has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 31 July
2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the
Bye-laws. Mr. Wen Wenfeng is entitled to a director’s
fee of HK$600,000 per annum which is determined by
arm’s length negotiation between Mr. Wen Wenfeng
and the Company and with reference to his duties and
responsibilities.

Mr. Lung Chee Ming George (“Mr. Lung”) has entered
into a service contract with the Company commencing
from 31 July 2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and/or re-election by general meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws. Mr. Lung is entitled to a director’'s fee of
HK$360,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Mr. Lung and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu"”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 14 March
2016. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Mr. Yu is entitled to a director’'s fee of HK$360,000
per annum which is determined by arm’s length
negotiation between Mr. Yu and the Company and with
reference to his duties and responsibilities.
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Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"”) has entered
into a service contract with the Company commencing
from 28 July 2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and/or re-election by general meetings in accordance
with the Bye-laws. Dr. Loke is entitled to a director’s fee
of HK$120,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Dr. Loke and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Tse Long (“Mr. Tse"”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 28 July
2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Mr. Tse is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$120,000
per annum which is determined by arm’s length
negotiation between Mr. Tse and the Company and with
reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (“Mr. Zeng”) has entered into a
service contract with the Company commencing from 16
June 2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/
or re-election by general meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws. Mr. Zeng is entitled to a director’s fee of
HK$120,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Mr. Zeng and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

EEMAEL ((EEt]) BT —RF+
A+ N\BEREEAQNFTZIRBEEL
FARBERMAUNAREAS LHERT
/B EET EELITZEEERSE
£120,00087C » WHEEBTEAQFR
THEEET2ZEEBENREAMETE -

AREAE(TH#HEE]) BZZE—HF LA
“+tNBREREEAQRLIREESL  ®
ARBER@ANABRERSE LHERT
R,/ SREREEX - HEEZTEETHEE
120,000787C + B LA EARQTR
FrEmGT2EEBENEEMEE -

BEMREE(GEE]) BT —RHEN
A+ NBEEEARQRFIRESH &
ARBERAAUANKREARAS LHERMT
R/ REREF BEEZHEEETHESE
£120,00087C » W B EAERQTR
THEEET2ZEEBENREAMETE -

HEFERSAEEERART 20155% 71



Directors’ Report
EEEWME

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, SHARE OPTIONS AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, the chief
executive of the Company nor their associates, had any
other interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which any such Director or chief executive of the Company
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or which (b) were required to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or which (c) were required to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted on 25 May 2012, whereby the Board may,
at its absolute discretion, grant options to any eligible
participants including directors and employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. On 23
December 2014, the Company has granted share options
under the Share Option Scheme to certain eligible grantees
(the "Grantees”), which enable the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 190,550,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of USD0.001 each in the share capital of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.405 per share.
During the year, 190,550,000 share options lapsed and no
share options were granted. And there was no outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2015.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 15a and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions
of persons other than a director or chief executive of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
Ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company
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Yu Wei Ye Beneficial owner 462,210,000 14.02%
REX BEamBEAA 462,210,000 14.02%
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Note:

(1) The percentages were calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital 3,296,673,250 shares as at 31
December 2015.

(2) The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short
position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided, having
regard to their duties, responsibilities and contribution
to the Company, the prevailing market conditions, time
commitment and the desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted share
option schemes as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees, details of the schemes are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue during
the year attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represents less than 30% of the group’s total revenue.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers represents less than 30%
of the group’s total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, no Directors of the
Company, their close associates or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the Directors’ knowledge won
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
shareholding in the suppliers referred to the above as at 31
December 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the applicable law of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors has interest in any business which
may compete with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWME

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this
report, permitted indemnity provisions were in force
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s articles of association
and in the Directors liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against such
Directors.

AUDITOR

Following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”) as auditor of the Company on 7 December
2015, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI
ANDA") was appointed as the auditor of the Company
on the same day to fill in the vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
auditor of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015 were audited by
ZHONGHUI ANDA whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Xiaolin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, April 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB NS S

h;C

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA NEW ENERGY POWER GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China New Energy Power Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 80 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB NS S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB NS S

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung
Practising Certificate Number P05988

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBm REMEE W R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

2015 2014
—B-5F “E-mF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Hizt TEx FHET
Revenue WA 8 (177,804) 160,865
Other income H A 9 272 7,045
Administrative expenses THRX (50,424) (17,208)
Share-based payments MR 2 58 - (41,400)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 BE 12 (8,661) =
Fair value loss on investment properties BREMEATEZER 19 (20,560) -
Net gain on derivative financial instruments THESBI Ay a5 = 31,486
Impairment loss on consideration receivable ~ HRBEFEHERRMNT
for disposal of food processing and RAHEES 2 BRAE
distribution operation in prior year ZREEE - (6,608)
Finance costs BEKA 10 (128) (5,041)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBiAT (B51B), %A (257,305) 129,139
Income tax FF 13 2,742 (6,512)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (FR)/BH 14 (254,563) 122,627
Attributable to: UFATEEEHS
Owners of the Company /NI (251,343) 122,627
Non-controlling interests RS (3,220) =
(254,563) 122,627
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBm AR E N ER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
F_E—AFT H=F—HIFE

2015 2014
—2-1f “E-mF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
=3 TR THIT
Other comprehensive income/(loss): ﬁﬂ’ﬂé@%‘é/ BE)
Item that may be reclassified to AJHBEN 7 EE
profit or loss: BmAaEE -
Foreign currency translation reserve REEMRBRARKER
reclassified to profit or loss upon NEEBRINERE
disposal of subsidiaries AR 12 2,280 -
Exchange differences on translating BEBNEEXBESE
foreign operations HIEH =% (1,640) (2,174)
640 (2,174)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LONGIE 2N 3
for the year attributable to owners ER2E
of the Company (B8)/Waes (253,923) 120,453
Attributable to: PiaEh 5
Owners of the Company ARAIRE (251,942) 120,453
Non-controlling interests IR (1,981) -
(253,923) 120,453
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (58) BA
(HK cents per share) (BREA) 17
Basic AR (8.12) 4.65
Diluted e (8.12) 331
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

‘RE IR
At 31 December 2015
RZFE—AF+ZH=1—H

2015 2014
—EB-HF —Z—F
Notes HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
Biat FHExT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E BN S 18 15,993 12
Investment properties wWEYHE 19 64,456 88,459
Deposits for acquisition of property, WE¥E « BE &
plant and equipment R iRE - 4,180
Deposits for investments in R BARIRENES
subsidiaries 19,004 -
99,453 92,651
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e MFERFHIE 2,226 2,272
Financial assets at fair value AT ER AER
through profit or loss ZEMEE 20 275,010 177,108
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 21 50,832 339,320
328,068 518,700
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hib B IERERE A 909 3,455
Current tax liabilities VAR IS B & - 6,512
9209 9,967
Net current assets REBEEFE 327,159 508,733
NET ASSETS EEFE 426,612 601,384
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

‘RE IR
At 31 December 2015
RZFE—AF+ZH=1—H

2015 2014
—E-51F — ik
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
Hia FET FET

Capital and reserves R K @&
Share capital A& A 22 25,696 22,650
Reserves 1 400,916 578,734
TOTAL EQUITY FES A 426,612 601,384

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 147
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Director WU Xiaolin Director WEN Wenfeng
EF REM BEF BRXF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
W\ 7(*")’\?:,%@]2%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRESR
Foreign
Share  currency Non-
Share Share  Capital  option translation Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests Total

e
Bx ke EARE BRERE ARGE RERN 4% FEREn it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
thrn TEr TEr Ter TRn TEr  TEr  TEr TR

(Note)
(Hit)

t 1 January 2014 R-E-RmE-A-A 14,895 - 4,289 - 895 266,925 287,004 - 287,004
Total comprehensive ER2ENE/ (BR)

income/(loss) for the year 4253 - - - - Q18 12671 120453 - 120453
Recognition of equity-settled BERHURALE

share-based payment R RERE,

expenses NEGE - - - 41,400 - - 41400 - 41,400
Issue of shares upon RERITARZE

conversion of BEIRA

convertible notes 7,755 144772 - - - - 152527 - 15,507
At 31 December 2014 RIZ-ME

and 1 January 2015 tZA=+-Rk

“-1F-F-H 22,650 144,772 4,289 41,400 (1323) 38959 601,384 - 601,384
Share options lapsed ERERMERE
during the year - - - (41,400) - 41400 - - -
Total comprehensive loss ~ FR2ABELE
for the year - - - - (599) (251,343) (251,942)  (1,981) (253,923)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAA - - - - - - - 1,981 1,981
Issue of ordinary shares ~ E7EER 3046 74124 - - - - T170 - 7170
At31December 2015 WZF-HF
+-A=1-H 25,696 218,896 4,289 - (1922) 179,653 426,612 - 426,612

Note: Capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the  ffiF - BAREAR —NMAANFETZEEE
group restructuring which took place in 1996. AP o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

NM ﬂ%ﬂiumgiﬂi

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

2015 2014
—E-EHF —%
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TExT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRBRERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BrEiAT (B518),m Al (257,305) 129,139
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 643 5
Finance costs AR 128 5,041
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR EE 8,661 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets at HERATEFABREZ
fair value through profit or loss SRMEEZER/ (M) 6,462 (88,296)
Imputed interest income on deferred EREBREZHENSBA
consideration receivables - (6,551)
Impairment loss on consideration receivables PRBTEEHORBMNIR
for disposal of food processing and DIHEBRBKEZRERE
distribution operation in prior years - 6,608
Share-based payments PARR AR 2 - 2 318 - 41,400
Written-off of deposits paid for acquisition of MIEKENZE - BERZE
property, plant and equipment ZBf&RE 4,180 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREHEEBER
plant and equipment 12 -
Interest income FIEWA (144) (408)
Net gain on derivative financial instruments TTHEER T AW FE - (31,486)
Fair value loss on investment properties BREMFE LT EZEE 20,560 -
Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAFEFABEZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZATEER, (W) 358 173,110 (66,084)
Operating cash flows before movements in LERREPNKERERNE
working capital (43,693) (10,582)
Change in deposits and prepayments He REMNRIBE 46 (1,208)
Change in trade and other receivable B 5 RHE YGRS (3,010) -
Change in other payables and accruals Hi RN RERERERE 2,633 (704)
Change in financial assets at fair value BATEITABR EREE
through profit or loss ] (277,474) 18,758
Cash (used in)/generated from operations REER (TR /FsRE (321,498) 6,264
Tax paid RANEZ2E] (3,770) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FrA), /8
operating activities ReRE (325,268) 6,264
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN A = —1
FREREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
FE—AFT H=F—HIFFE

2015 2014
“E-h8fF —ZE—uF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
TExT FET
Cash flows from investing activities REFHFBRERE
Receipt of deferred consideration for WEREEHB AR ZEERE
disposal of subsidiaries - 297,268
Consideration from disposal of food BERHERMMIRDHER 2 KE
processing and distribution operation received - 3,000
Interest received EYHLE 144 14
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BFE R E 2 ETHE
plant and equipment 10 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A A (4,178) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WHEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment BEfii&e - (4,180)
Deposits paid for investments in subsidiaries REMBRRZEMNES (19,004) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENZE  BERZE (17,694) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A (35,920) -
Net cash generated (used in)/generated RETE (FTA), FERLFE
from investing activities (76,642) 296,102
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares BTG 2 PG EIEFEE 77.170 -
Bank borrowings raised RITIEEIE N 36,186 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIRITIEE (1,627) -
Interest paid ERHE (128) -
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEZBFEREFHE 111,601 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BekFLEEEE (BD)/
cash equivalents 1N %R (290,309) 302,366
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE EYRERREEEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 339,320 37,016
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES [EX%& 5 v & 1,821 (62)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END EREERFESEMEER
OF THE YEAR 50,832 339,320

86 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

GENERAL INFORMATION

China New Energy Power Group Limited (the “Company")
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Room 204-
205, 2/F, OfficePlus@Sheung Wan, No. 93-103 Wing
Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2015.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group's accounting policies, presentation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior
years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties and
investments which are carried at their fair values.
These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the
Directors to exercise their judgments in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgments and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these financial statements
are further disclosed in note 4 to these financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

S
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the entity and has the ability to affect those returns EJZIS%ITI%IJ‘?g‘&E - BAKEMIR
through its power over the entity. The Group has BN TEENEZEEEER (A
power over an entity when the Group has existing NG %‘““”@#ﬁﬂ’]%i}‘%)h Bl
rights that give it the current ability to direct the SEHZERBITHERES -

relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHBE#E)
Consolidation (Continued) FalkEB (&)
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits EBERNRAMAZRS - BRI AREE

are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interest represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination and goodwill (Continued)
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
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Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

BHRWEBZ RN EMER 2 RE
EEEN -

TR BB A )2 FRAE B i 2a 1) 2P 1R IR
PRBCR B ZM B ARNKEE B2
AR EER BB A FEL DI

st
= o
ZAr

HESEORB EEMARAR 20154% 91



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE _FE—hF1_H=1—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)

(i) Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(iii)  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plan and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:
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Land and building T REF 5%
Leasehold improvements MEMFEEE 33%
Furniture and fixtures RERETEERE 10% to 33%

10% 2= 33%
Motor vehicles TE 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESTEXRE)
Operating leases KeEHE
The Group as lessee KEEEBFABAA

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire;
the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not
retained control on the assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis, where the purchase or sale of
an investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Other receivables

Other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the
carrying amount of the receivables and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase
in the receivables’ recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the receivables at the
date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Other payables

Other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
have been established.

(b) Interest income from financial assets is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(c)  Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to director/employee

The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot
be reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the
Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties
render services, unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets.

If the equity instruments granted vest immediately,
the counterparty is not required to complete
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In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the
entity shall presume that services rendered by
the counterparty as consideration for the equity
instruments have been received. In this case, on
grant date the entity shall recognise the services
received in full, with a corresponding increase in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sales, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for captialisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
assets, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Groups liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESTEXRE)

Taxation (Continued) BE(E)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are BEHBEBHNGETEXEEE
expected to apply in the period when the liability HEAREE R o R E - EE%@E%
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates RBEHREBEMIELD FEEMHZ
that have been enacted or substantively enacted R - FREMRIBERNIBEZPER - EE

by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are resumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties
are measured based on the expected manned as to
how the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(ivy One entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

1 04 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BY 5= T 5
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a

parent of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to and assess the performance of the
Group’'s various lines of business in different

geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except investment properties,
investment and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

1 06 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015

S

TESHEEE)

DEEE (F)
BEREZNEEDB IS AT AR
BHmEZR  BNZELENHNE
mAREME - FETFHE - BF
BRI E ~ 7 $HE m SR RIS HY
TENREEERENANE FEBERE
BBELL - BIVERIR @RI TEEN
REDTRINRTT A A ERE 61
ARl A B FT A —ERE DR -

EERE

REBREHPR  AEEHSHHMHE
BRREREE(RENE  KER
FEMRIRRRSN) 2 R EE - LEER
SEEMBRBREES HIRRER
18- mAEMRERR - AlgkatE
EZAWEERE - ABEERERSEZ
BE o IAAlREERHERIE E < fT i
&% MAKRESHATEEMBR
CELBM KOS -

AW Bl & B8 A A SRR 2 H B R AN B
EREEMETZRSE - RatH
FEREER - G ARKRERENR]
[ R T 45 3 Bs BT R A7 2 8% s 1B S %
BERFERR < HAMIRKINER
1B o



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

S

TRETHEE)

BERMEGE)
HWEENRESEL BN 2 ATWEI SR
ERT LR EREE - MIEESRE
EABEM 2 REESHS 2 HE A E
T o BEBEREGARNESER
RIFEEEENIREGH SRR
S EZIBAT  BEBESHERS
EftRE -

fHBEBELRED  MEEXRS
EEEUFRHRESENELERZ
EET R B S5 - R IE N2 BRE
BETERRNBRRUANEFELEREE
SR e EL B RERIRERENRE
BE AR E (FIREESITE)  Ff
B REREE RN BEER -
RIFEEEENREGH SRR
S EZIBAT - PR Z B EEE

loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued @b e A e (LM (E o
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment

loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities BERSAREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_F—hF1T_H=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in
the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

4, KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of
the investment properties. In determining the
fair values, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgment and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks; foreign currency risk, price risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB").
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

(b) Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
security price risk. The directors manage
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with difference risk profiles.

At 31 December 2015, if the share prices of
the investments increase/decrease by 10%,
loss (2014: profit) after tax for the year
would have been HK$27,500,960 (2014:
HK$17,710,800) lower/higher (2014: higher/
lower), arising as a result of the fair value
gain/loss of the investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Credit risk
The Group does not have any trade receivables
that exposed to credit risk.

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputation.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rate.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer terms. All the Group's
financial liabilities are due within one year.

Categories of financial instruments at 31
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December ]|
2015 2014
—EB-RF —ZE—MmF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Loans and receivables (including EF&EWFIE(BRFEE
cash and cash equivalents) kIREFEHEE) 50,832 339,320
Financial assets at fair value BATERABR
through profit or loss iﬁﬁéﬁ(?ﬂ’ﬁiﬁ;
(held-for-trading) 275,010 177,108
325,842 516,428
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected
in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair
values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categories into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A5 R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy
at the end of the reporting period:

6. AVEFEE)
(a) RBEHARAIFEERREER

Bl
Fair value measurements using: Total
ATEFBRAZER #st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015

1 st F=& —F-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT

Description

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets at fair value

il
SREATEIE

WAVFERAREZ

through profit or loss EREE

Listed securities in Hong Kong REE LTHES 275,010 - - 275,010
Investment properties: REME :

Commercial - PRC EE—p - 64,456 - 64,456
Total recurring fair value REHATETESSE

measurements 275,010 64,456 - 339,466
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. NEEFE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy () REEHRLAFEEBRFER
at the end of the reporting period: Bl (&)
(Continued)
Fair value measurements using: Total
NEEFEFRAZER : et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
& F-/ F=/ —ZT—mME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TET THET FET FET
Description it
Recurring fair value REMDNRETE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value BATERFABRZ
through profit or loss EREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong REE LT RES 177,108 - - 177,108
Investment properties: REME :
Commercial = PRC BE-PH - 88,459 - 88,459
Total recurring fair value REMATEFTEERE
measurements 177,108 88,459 - 265,567

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
there were no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2014: nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

The Group's financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets
and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports
directly to the board of directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the board of directors
at least twice a year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

6.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The Group's investment properties were valued
at their fair values at 31 December 2015. The fair
values were valued by Roma Appraisals Limited
(2014: LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited),
an independent professionally qualified valuer
which holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and types of investment properties
valued. The current use of the investment
properties equates to the highest and best use.

The fair value of investment properties in
PRC is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis using market data.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis
of internal reports about the components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. Reported segment information
is based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by executive
directors, being the CODM of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
FCE—AFT H=F—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s operations are organised based on
the two business activities which are also the
information regularly reported to CODM. The details
of operating and reportable segments of the Group
are as follows:

(i) Securities trading and investment — purchase
and sale of securities and securities investment

(i)  Property investment — generation of rental

DTEER(E)

AEE 2 LERIBEMAXLA DA
D EMRRATELERREEH
BEZER - ARE 2 EERARE
DEFBWT

(i BHEEELRRE-BHEER
EHFHRE

(i) MERE-EEHSWA -

income
Segment revenue and results: DTHEKRARELS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue RTAREERREDEZWARE
and results by reportable segment: BT
Securities
trading and Property
investment investment Total
BHEERRE NERE GRS
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET TR Tz
Year ended 31 December 2015 B2-Z-1f
+TZA=t-HLEE
Segment revenue: PERA
Revenue from external customers MR F IR (179,273) 1,469 (177,804)
Segment loss PEER (186,086) (20,572) (206,658)
Unallocated corporate income RTHERBRA 272
Unallocated corporate expenses AFHELARX (50,791)
Finance costs BEKA (128)
Loss before tax BREAIER (257,305)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEER (Z)
Segment revenue and results: (Continued) DPHEWAREE(E)
Securities
trading and Property
investment investment Total
BFEERKE MERE A
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THT FHET THT
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E-If
TZA=t-HLEE
Segment revenue: PERA
Revenue from external customers N U 160,865 - 160,865
Segment profit/(loss) AR,/ (BE) 152,443 (334) 152,109
Unallocated corporate income RTAEARKA 6,953
Unallocated corporate expenses RIDEARFRL (49,760)
Other gains Hi s 24,878
Finance costs REKA (5,041)
Profit before tax BR 4 Al A 129,139

The accounting policies of the reportable and
operating segment are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment result represents profit/
(loss) from each segment without allocation of
central administrative costs, share-based payments,
directors’ remuneration, finance costs, other income
and other gains (excluding the fair value changes
and gain/loss from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, which is included in the
securities trading and investment segment result).
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

AREDBREEN R TR
AEBEETBOR $HH°"*E%Z$T
DIRER(BIR) ReT AD B R
THER - MBMXXf23HE  EF
FEN - BEKAK - B U AR E A
B (PERFAAEFEERRED
%ZEZ N HEZE MR A FEFAR
BZEMEERS BB o thRMA
TELERREETERAMEERD
FRkFHERR 2T -
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets

7. DEEMGE)
THEENRESE
ATRARERBREDBIEERE

and liabilities by reportable segment: B :
Securities
trading and Property
investment investment Total
EHEERRE MERE RS
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET TET TET
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F
+=ZB=+-H
Segment assets NEEE 275,010 64,456 339,466
Unallocated corporate assets ATHERREE 88,055
Consolidated total assets HeEEME 427,521
Segment liabilities NEEE - 469 469
Unallocated corporate liabilities ATHERRBE 440
Consolidated total liabilities LeaReE 909
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEEEREE(E)
Securities
trading and Property
investment investment Total
BHEERKE NERE B
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THT FHET THT
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-DmF
+=ZHA=+—-H
Segment assets NEEE 177,108 88,459 265,567
Unallocated corporate assets ATHERREE 345,784
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 611,351
Segment liabilities PEAE 6,512 2,639 9,151
Unallocated corporate liabilities ATHERARBE 816
Consolidated total liabilities LEaBESR 9,967

The Group's unallocated corporate assets at the end
of the reporting period mainly consist of property,
plant and equipment, deposits for investments in
subsidiaries, deposit for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, deposits and prepayments and
cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s unallocated
corporate liabilities at the end of the reporting
period consists other payables and accruals.

AEBRBERRZ AT OERRE
EXTBEREME - BERRE - R
BRBKRENERE - WENE  BE
k@2 iEE - e MANRRRR
ERBEFERE - AEERHEH
RZARTHEARIBBEEZEBEEM
RN RIRRTERER -
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEER (Z)
Geographical information: IR E R
Revenue Non-current assets
['ON FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-RF —T—NF ZEBE-HF —FT—NHNF
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000  HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET FET FHET FET

Hong Kong B (179,273) 160,865 34,997 4,192
The Peoples’ Republic ~ #%E A R HEFIE

of China (the” PRC”)  ([HEl]) 1,469 - 64,456 88,459

(177,804) 160,865 99,453 92,651

The revenue information above is based on the EXXERAE B T B R AL B AT i
locations of operations. [& o
Information about major customers EREXEEFMNEHR
There is no single customer contributing over 10% THERE-XFPHERMBERAAEER
of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 2 ZE—HFK_ZFT—NE+_H
31 December 2015 and 2014. =+—HIEFERKRAN10% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

8. REVENUE 8. N
Revenue represents dividend income from financial WAEREBEATFEFAEBRZ @
assets at fair value through profit or loss, (loss)/gain BEZIRBWA - HERAFEA
on disposal of financial assets at fair value through BRZemEE (B1B) ks - BA
profit or loss, net fair value change on financial FEFABRZEHEEANTFEES
assets at fair value through profit or loss and rental FEE NS WA o
income.
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZE-MEF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THERT FET
Dividend income from financial assets EAFEFABZEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEREBA 299 6,485
(Loss)/gain on disposal of financial HERAFEFABREZ
assets at fair value through eMEE (BEB) W
profit or loss (6,462) 88,296
Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial &R AFETABRZ S/
assets at fair value through BEATE(ER), W=
profit or loss HER (173,110) 66,084
Rental income HEWA 1,469 -
(177,804) 160,865
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HftlgA
2015 2014
—E-HF —EF—IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Interest income FEWA 144 408
Imputed interest income on deferred  ELEWRE ZEHHE
consideration receivable A B A = 6,551
Others HA 128 86
272 7,045
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. ®ERAK
2015 2014
—E-HF —F—F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Interest expenses on borrowings: BEZNEER :

— Bank borrowings —RITEE 128 —
— Convertible notes e E - 5,041
128 5,041

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 11. WEBHEBAR

In February 2015, China Luen Kin Company Limited
(“China Luen Kin"), a 60% owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a conditional
agreement with RIEBEEREXZBRAR ("R
f2"”), an independent third party to the Group
(the "Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to
which, China Luen Kin has conditionally agreed to
purchase or procure to purchase the entire equity
interest in RIITRF AIBHEEBR AR ("X
J7H#E") at the aggregate of (i) the consideration
of RMB2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,257,000) for the entire equity interest in
B H#E under the Acquisition Agreement and
(ii) the consideration of RMB1,020,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,268,000) to be paid as
compensation under the Supplement Memorandum
entered in February 2015 (the “Acquisition”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BY 5= T 5
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1T—HIFEF

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

11. WEHBQAR(Z)

The Acquisition was completed on 13 March 2015 WEEEER_E—RAF=A+=H
and X7 B#E is principally engaged in supply chain TR RO BREBETEMNSHESRT
management business. The assets and liabilities at BES - NKERHzEEREEN
the date of acquisition were as follows: T
HK$’ 000
FH&T
Net identifiable assets of FT U B Bt 8 2 B) 2 AT s Al
subsidiaries acquired: BEFE :
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA FEEE 347
Trade and other receivable B 5 & HAth U R IE 933
Other payables H Ath & < I8 (12)
1,268
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEZHE 3,257
Consideration transferred, satisfied by cash ~ FrEZERE - LB\ X 4,525
Analysis of net outflow of cash and ERWENBAR RS KRS
cash equivalents in respect of ZEEBEERLFEIN
acquisition of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration paid ENREKE (4,525)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired B IR e RIREEEER 347
(4,178)
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 12.
On 23 December 2015, in order to reserve more
resources to focus on the Group’s core securities
trading and investment, and property investment
businesses, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in its subsidiary, Well Champion Asia
Limited, and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Well Champion Group”) to an independent
third party at an aggregate cash consideration of WERXEERMEEHEEIBER - 1
HK$1. The Well Champion Group was principally HEBRH  READNEBNEERA
engaged in investment holding and supply chain BT
management business. The assets and liabilities
of the Well Champion Group at the date of the
disposal were as follows:

HENRBAR

R-_ZE—RHF+_-_A-+=H A
BEESZHNEREBMRAEBESESR
RIERYEREZOLER  AEE
REBESREVETA—BBYE=
HFHEERHMBRARREZRMNBRA
ARENBRAR(ABIERERME
EDEEKRE REDMNEREE

HK$" 000
FHET
Net assets of subsidiaries disposed of: B ENE L 7] EEFIE -
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BB MRE 1,030
Trade and other receivable B 5 K& H fth fe I8 3,943
Cash and cash equivalents HekREeEFBEIEHR 35,920
Bank borrowings RITIEE (34,559)
Trade and other payable B 5 RHE M ET FRIE (5,191)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 1,143
Release of foreign currency R E F
translation reserve 2,280
Non-controlling interests eI i 1,981
Goodwill written off 6 IS 3,257
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAAZEE 8,661
Analysis of net outflow of cash and BRHENBRAZHE R
cash equivalent in respect of disposal B EEIEE T FEES T
of subsidiaries:
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ELEREMREEEER (35,920)

1 24 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

13  INCOME TAX 13. FhiiE®
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-mEF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: ERNEH

— Over-provision in prior years/ —BEFEHEE

(provision) for the year B RFEE (BE) 2,742 (6,512)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the
year, as the Group incurred a loss for tax purpose.
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax made
as the subsidiaries operating in the PRC have no
assessable profits for both years.

REZWEEEBFSHELBE
ThHRASEEELEFIEEIS - ERE
E_T--MNFE+-_A=+—HItFE
ZAEEHERB R 1% 16.5% B R/
BB BFESTEE -

R BIE & 2 M B A BN M EF

B EERTG A - S EA T E
RMEHEE -
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RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
FCE—AFT H=F—HIFFE

13  INCOME TAX (Continued) 13. FBH (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax and the FTiSH R BRBLAT (B18), 5 2 $ iR
(loss)/profit before tax is as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-0F —T—MmF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FHExT FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFLAT (E518),Sm (257,305) 129,139
Calculated at a domestic income tax ~ #&H Wﬁﬁ/a A E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 25%) —PUEE : 25% )51 & (42,455) 32,285
Tax effect of income not taxable ﬁu%ﬁq&)\zm%“??; (73) (20,514)
Effect of different tax rates of E’\Eﬁﬂ AEEREE 2 EE
group entities operating in ERTATEZZE
other jurisdictions 1,720 (12,969)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  HEBRME L 2 HEFE 16,718 15,364
Tax effect of taxes losses not RERRTEBEB 2 HETE 24,090 84
recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not  E)A LRI AR 2 T IEE 1B
recognised - (7,738)
Over-provision in prior years BT EBERE (2,742) =
Income tax for the year FEHIA (2,742) 6,512

At the end of the reporting period subject to agreement
by the tax authorities, the Group has unused tax

//

WERARGERIGEIER =
l E’J A B) T E 18 482,979,000

& R

losses of approximately HK$82,979,000 (2014: Bt (= Z — P4 : 53,950,000 %
HK$53,950,000) available for offset against future 7o) A AERER B R - ARAE
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due EZEE B RKRANRE A HEE
to the unpredictability of future streams of those entities M B EAERIREIBEEE -

of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

14. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. XFE(HR) TEF
The Group's (loss)/profit for the year is stated after AEBAFE(EHERE) &FEM
charging/(crediting): B (5T A) ToI%IE -
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Depreciation of property, plant M WEREREBITE
and equipment 643 55
Operating lease rentals in respect BT RBFZEE
of land and buildings MEMS 6,145 1,670
Auditors’ remuneration G 650 720
Impairment loss on consideration FRBTFEHERM
receivables for disposal of NI K5 sHE W
food processing and distribution REZREEE
operation in prior years - 6,608
Write-off of deposits paid for WIEKEME - BE
acquisition of property, plant wEzENES
and equipment 4,180 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - WENEE
and equipment o it 12 -
Staff costs (including Directors’ BINA (BEME15
remuneration in note 15): ZERHH) -
Salaries, fees, bonuses and e e 28
allowances N Rh 13,781 9,401
Share-based payments VARR D 32+ 2 5k 18 - 41,400
Retirement benefits scheme RIRRE R B R
contribution 294 183
14,075 50,984

Imputed interest income on deferred  ELEEWAKE ZEHE

consideration receivables FB U A - (6,551)
Net gain on derivative PTEERIT A WaF5
financial instruments - (31,486)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 15. EEFM
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=FHM
The remuneration of each Director of the BHE_ZE—FRFt+_A=1+—
Company for the year ended 31 December HIEFEARRRESES 25
2015 is set out below: T -

Salaries Retirement

and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
e HERHMRR  RHENHE @t
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
M TEn TER TAn TAn
Executive directors: HiTEE
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace EREL 1 524 - - 524
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred ~ #EIE %4 2 753 225 8 986
Mr. Xing Cheng gk 3 300 - - 300
Mr. He Xiao Wu MERLE 4 320 - - 320
Mr. Lo Wing Sang SRS 5 420 1,697 1 2,128
Mr. Shi Liangsheng RRF A 13 233 - 6 239
Mr. Wen Wenfeng BXFELE 15 326 - 6 33
Mr. Wu Xiaolin REMEE 16 234 302 8 544
Non-executive directors: FHIEE
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace EREL 1 10 - - 10
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EXwis 6 126 - - 126
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George EEFHI% A 12 181 - - 181
Independent non- BUFHTEE
executive directors:
Mr. Zeng Qingkai B % 7 69 - - 69
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing ~ B&REI%E 8 67 - - 67
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai BREERE 9 69 - - 69
Dr. Loke Yu EEmEL
(alias Lok Hoi Lam) 10 121 - - 121
Mr. Ho Long Chin, Mattew  RATL4 1 39 - - 39
Mr. Tse Long AREE 14 91 - - 91
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin LEHEE 17 145 - - 145
Ms. Tang Man Yi HEEat 18 41 - - 41
4,069 2,224 39 6,332
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. ESBHE(2Z)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=HM(E)
The remuneration of each Director of the HE—ZE—NE+—-_A=+—
Company for the year ended 31 December HIEFEARARRRES 25
2014 is set out below: oy
Salaries Share-  Retirement
and other based benefits
Fees benefits Bonus  payments scheme Total
EFI R A RIK
e HfiEH T EBZAR B b
Note  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
i3 TAL TET TRT TAT TAT TAT
Executive directors: HITEE -
Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace e I 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Xing Cheng gk 3 117 - - - - 117
Mr. He Xiao Wu EFEE 4 - - - - - -
Mr. Lo Wing Sang GKERE S 60 634 - 1,300 4 1,998
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong EEXEE 19 423 - - - - 423
Mr. Chiu Kong ik bk 20 595 457 - - 28 1,080
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu REREE 21 - 237 100 - 12 349
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy Bi#%%4E 21 - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Guang Lin REMEE 20 495 - - - 14 509
Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong REVEE 20 495 - - - 14 509
Non-executive director: FHTEE
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EXwks 6 40 - - - - 40
Independent non- BUHHTEE
executive directors:
Mr. Zeng Qingkai gESRE 7 20 - - - - 20
Mr. FuWing Kwok, Ewing ~ B&REILE 8 49 - - - - 49
Mr. Chan Chit Kwai REEEE 9 25 - - - - 25
Ms. Ma Yin Fan SExat 2 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying 2AERE 2 87 - - - - 87
Mr. Yu Pan TERE 21 87 - - - - 87
Mr. Lee Ming Tung THERE 2 87 - - - - 87
2,836 1,328 100 1,300 72 5,636
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(1) Ms. Jin Cheng, Grace was re-designated
from an executive director to a non-
executive director and no longer been the
Chairlady on 15 June 2015. Ms. Jin Cheng,
Grace resigned as a non-executive director
on 31 July 2015.

(2) Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred was appointed
as the Chairman and an executive director
on 16 June 2015 and resigned on 14 March
2016.

(3) Mr. Xing Cheng resigned as an executive
director on 31 May 2015.

(4) Mr. He Xiaowu resigned as an executive
director on 10 June 2015.

(5) Mr. Lo Wing Sang resigned as an executive
director and chief executive officer on 28
July 2015.

(6) Mr. Lu Zhigiang resigned as a non-executive
director on 9 July 2015.

(7) Mr. Zeng Qingkai resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 15 June 2015.

(8) Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing resigned as an
independent non-executive director on 10
June 2015.

(9) Mr. Chan Chit Kwai resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 16 June 2015.

(10)  Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 28
July 2015.

(11)  Mr. Ho Long Chin, Matthew was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on
15 June 2015 and resigned on 28 July 2015.

(12)  Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George was appointed
as a non-executive director on 31 July 2015.

(13)  Mr. Shi Liangsheng was appointed as an
executive director on 28 July 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_FE—hF1T_H=1—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(14)

(15)

Mr. Tse Long was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 28 July 2015.

Mr. Wen Wenfeng was appointed as an
executive director on 31 July 2015.

Mr. Wu Xiaolin was appointed as an
executive director on 16 June 2015 and the
chief executive officer on 31 July 2015.

Mr. Mr. Zeng Zhaolin was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 16
June 2015.

Ms. Tang Man Yi was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 10
June 2015 and resigned on 28 July 2015.

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong resigned as executive
director on 15 September 2014.

Mr. Chiu Kong, Mr. Chen Guang Lin and Mr.
Wu Zhuo Tong resigned as executive director
on 29 October 2014.

Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu, Mr. Kwan Kam Hung,
Jimmy, Ms. Ma Yin Fan, Mr. Leung Hoi Ying,
Mr. Yu Pan and Mr. Lee Ming Tung resigned
as independent non-executive directors on
14 November 2014.

15.

ESHM (&)
(a) E=E=FM(E)
Mt : (%)

(14)

(15)

(19)

(20)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. EEBHE(2Z)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ENUERSHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were AEBRUZSHEMA LTS

the highest in the Group are as follows: N
2015 2014
—E—REF —E—F
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
Directors = 3,658 4,096
Employees (== 1,951 1,355
5,609 5,451
The Group's five highest paid individuals AEBRUGERTMALTETE
included three (2014: four) directors and —H(ZE—NNF : WF)EE
two (2014: one) employees. Details of the EmE(ZE—HE : —8)E
emoluments of the Directors are reflected B BEHMFBHEHNLEX
in the analysis presented above. The details 2ot FA - ZMA(ZE
of the aggregate emoluments of the two —NF: —F)EEFHMERE
(2014: one) employees, all falling within the (BRZEHAILZE 1,000,000 7T
band of HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 (2014: —Z—PH4 : 1,000,001 T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000), for the year %1,500,000/ T @) 0T -

are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —F—F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e RMREYMHN =
benefit-in-kind 1,750 1,341
Compensation for loss of office BB (& 178 -
Retirement benefit costs RINE R A 23 14
1,951 1,355
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BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. EEFHM(ZE)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EHENUESEHMAL(E)
Save as disclosed above, for the two years M EXFREEIN  BHE-SZ
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no other —hER_ZE—NFE+_A4
emoluments had been paid by the Group =Z=+—BIMEFE  ~£E
to the Directors or the five highest paid WERNEEX A A= MA
individuals as an inducement to join or upon T HHMBMESEAIARSE
joining the Group. E S MAR KR ZH R
16. DIVIDEND 16. KE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any BETEEMEBEE_T—RAF+-A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December =T—HLEFERNENRE(ZE
2015 (2014: nil). —POeF : M) o
17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. B8R (FHE) &7
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/ ARRIRREGERERNREE (5
earnings per share attributable to owners of the B/ BRBERATERTE

Company is based on the following data:

2015 2014
—EB-HF —T-lF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FHT
(Loss)/earnings: (B8’ BF :
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose EUGTESRER(BRE)
of basic (loss)/earnings per share BFz (E8), BF (251,343) 122,627
Effect of dilutive potential TERETEETE
ordinary shares:
— Interest on convertible notes — AR EET A - 5,041
— Net gain on derivative financial —THEEemMIAY
instruments st #5E - (31,486)
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of EUGTESREE (BB)
diluted (loss)/earnings per share BFz (E8) B (251,343) 96,182
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17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 17.
Number of shares:

Bk (&8R) &R (&)
BRAEA :
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZE—OF

Weighted average number of ordinary ZEUAGFEERER
shares for purpose of calculation of (B18),Biz

basic (loss)/earnings per share TR INFE T 8
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary TERETE s E

shares

— Convertible loans — AR E K

— Share options (note) — B AR A (Bt E)

3,095,487,497 2,639,552,702

- 266,340,466
- 57,299

Weighted average number of ordinary # UAFHE &R EEE
shares for the purpose of calculation — (E518),&#| 2
of diluted (loss)/earnings per share TR INFE T 8

3,095,487,497 2,905,950,467

Note: The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2015 does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options as the
exercise of the Company’s share options would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

1 34 China New Energy Power Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Wi HHBE-—T—AF+ A
S t-RLEEZEREEEE
A 45 BARAT AR R AR -
B AITEA R AR S SRS
RAERRD -



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_HA=1—HIFEF

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. V¥ - - BMELKRXRE
Land and Leasehold Furniture Motor
building improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
THEEF  RENEEE FARKE RE st
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000
T TAL TATL ThL Thr
CosT A :
At 1 January 2014 R-E-ME-f—-A - 638 385 231 1,254
Disposals (& - - (50) = (50)
At 31 December 2014and  R=E-ME+=A=+—H
1 January 2015 k=Z-1%-A-H - 638 335 231 1,204
Additions BE 14,700 2,090 904 - 17,694
Disposals e - (639) (249) (231) (1,119)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - (560) (621) = (1,181)
Fxchange differences ERES = (19) (1) - (20)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-nFT-A=1-H 14,700 1,510 368 - 16,578
ACCUMULATED ZithE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-f—-H - 638 364 185 1,187
Charge for the year ERRR - - 9 46 55
Fxchange differences ERES - - (50) - (50)
At31December 2014and  R=E-NE+-A=+—H
1 January 2015 k=E-n%-A-H - 638 323 231 1,192
Charge for the year ERFR 61 419 163 - 643
Eliminated on disposals RHEREHE - (638) (228) (231) (1,097)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERHBA - (64) (87) - (151)
Exchange differences EHES - 2) > = 2)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RE+-A=1-H 61 353 171 - 585
CARRYING AMOUNTS R -
31 December 2015 “E-nET-A=T-H 14,639 1,157 197 - 15,993
31 December 2014 “S-ME+-A=+-A - - 12 - 12
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REY=

Company is based on the following data: RARERATEIE :

2015 2014
i — ik
HK$’' 000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T

At beginning of the reporting period Rk Ei#) 88,459 90,571

Change in fair value N EE (20,560) -

Exchange differences ME X Z5E (3.443) (2,112)

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 64,456 88,459

(@)  All of the Group’s investment properties were (@ AEBEWFRBEREMETIRIE
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation IS HIEEAREEREMNA
purposes and were measured using the fair FERAATEERENGE -
value model.

(b) Investment properties were revalued at the (b) KREMERBEHRBBILE
end of the reporting period on the open ¥AHEMZESBRERFHEERA
market value basis by reference to market A(ZE—1m4F : METAE
evidence of recent transactions for similar MARAR) K2R ELUYE
properties by an independent professional MR ST ERHER AR
valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited (2014: LCH MIGEEEEREITER -
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited).

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. RAFEFABRZEMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
represent equity securities listed in Hong Kong. Fair
values are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices.
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21.

22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-
term bank deposits with original maturity of three
months or less, and carry interest ranging from
0.01% to 0.8% (2014: 0.01% to 0.8%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents that were in RMB,
which is not freely convertible into other currencies
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC
amounting to approximately HK$2,575,000 (2014:
HK$5,061,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other cash and
cash equivalents are mainly denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

SHARE CAPITAL

21. BHekHELEEER
RekHeZEEEBEREMNRE
HAERK PR =[A 2R HRTHF
o FEFENF0.01%E0.8% (==
—PO4F : 0.01% £ 0.8%) °

RIBEER  AEBUARKEFEEZ
RekBESFBEBEE#A2,575,000
BL(ZF — @ F :5,061,000%
L) TR EHRABKEMER, KA
XA Bl SNE B 6l FT AR o

/7

AEBEMRE MRS FEEE K
EEEZNAETIIE -

22. R

Number of
ordinary shares
US$0.001 each

FR0.001 £
L EBkEA
("000) Us$' 000 HK$' 000
(Fh) FEx TAT
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2015 and 2014 R-ZE—HER-T-NF
+-A=+—~H 100,000,000 100,000 775,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHMR
At 1 January 2014 N_Z-NF—-A—A 1,906,073 1,906 14,895
lssue of shares upon conversion ~ RERAAREER
of convertible notes 17l 1,000,000 1,000 7,755
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-NF+-A=+—H
1 January 2015 KZE-—HF—HF—H 2,906,073 2,906 22,650
Issue of shares on placement (note) PECERZITR (HiE) 390,600 391 3,046
At 31 December 2015 R-_E-RF+_A=+—H 3,296,673 3,297 25,696
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22.

SHARE CAPITAL(Continued)

Note: Completion of the share placement took place
on 8 July 2015 pursuant to which 390,600,000
placement shares were issued under the placement
agreement at the placement price of HK$0.201
per placement share. Accordingly, the Company’s
issued share capital was increased by approximately
HK$3,046,000 and its share premium account
was increased by approximately HK$74,124,000.
Net proceeds from the issues after deduction of
expenses of approximately HK$1,341,000, were
approximately HK$77,170,000.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No major changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the two years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion
to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
payment of dividends, issue of new shares, shares
buy-back, raising new debts, redemption of existing
debts or assets disposal to reduce debts. The capital
structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital
and reserves.
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23.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 25 May 2012. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board of Directors (“Board”) may,
at their discretion, grant options to any directors,
executives, employees and any other persons who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
determined by the directors and not less than the
highest of:

(i) The closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
options;

(i)  The average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; and

(iii) ~ The nominal value of the shares of the Company
on the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
of that date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 in
aggregate as consideration for the options granted.
Vesting periods are determined by the Board on
each grant date. Options are lapsed if the employee
leaves the Group before the option vest.

23.

BB RESTE

ARARR-_E——FRA-+HBE
m— IR IR B ([5181)) - BIRET
2 -Exg((E52))URBREM
BEE TBRAE BERYAEERE
FrEB e EL TR 2 EMEAmA
TREERE  NZEEEBEFEZER
RERARRRG - REETBSENRT

JlmR=E

(i) ARARRONBERERLDBH
e 32 P& B R(E R AR 2
miE

(i) ARFROHREZBRERL
BHIRAEE X B EBI S
BERAR - FHEHIE
54

(i) AAFBROAREREBHZE
g o

RIRETEIP] TR L ERES k2 ’RH
BEYRERRARRELLEDTSE
HBEARTEAERRIED ETRN Z
10% ° IRBEREMFEER T RAEE
BT EMEAZBRESZETRET
BIZROEBERERABIRREL
HETNS BB AR B EEF RS 3%
TR Z 1% °

RUERLBREINE K 1BTLZ
RER  ESREBEREANZERELR
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FEHERBOEEERAT 20155

139



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS R R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BEx _FT—hF+_A=1—HIFEF

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES(Continued) 23. BRESTEI(E)
On 23 December 2014, 190,550,000 share options RZE—NMF+_HA=+=8"
were granted. The options may be exercised by the 190,550,000 17 BB AR A X HH o A%
grantees at any time from the date of grant of share AR EERRAER H B IR H B Hm
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. F10E S | FRBER TR ARKE -
All share options vested immediately at the date of FIEBIRENR L E BRI RS -
grant.
Details of the options were as follows: B E 2 FFIBT ¢
Fair value at
Date of grant Number of share options granted  Exercise period Exercise price grant date
RHAH EREEREHSE Ed]S e RREAHZAVE
23 December 2014 190,550,000 23 December 2014 to HK$0.405 HK$41,400,000
—E-|mE 22 December 2024 0.405 /87T 41,400,000/
TZAZ+=H “T-mF+-A-tZHZ
“E-MEt-AZtZH
During the year, 190,550,000 share options lapsed. R 4 A+ 190,550,0001% & A% 4 X
No option was granted under the Scheme during the BoRBE-F-RF+-_HA=1—
year ended 31 December 2015. HILFE  WEBEFEERLER
T o
The following tables disclose position of the \ .
Company’s share options held by director, employee FTRBERFNES - B8 MERK
and consultants during the year: BRZARRBIBEREZER
Movement from Granted during
1 January 2015 last year and
to outstanding at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
M-B-RF-F-H REFRHER
Categories of participants H-%-H5F+=f —ZT-WmE+=A
SEEES =t-Az88 =t ARKOF
Director 2 5,500,000 5,500,000
Employee EE 5,500,000 5,500,000
Consultants (note) B (4iE) 179,550,000 179,550,000
Balance at 1 January 2015/ W-ZE-h%—A-R8/

31 December 2014 “E-METZA=T—HZHE 190,550,000 190,550,000
Lapsed during the year FRE R (190,550,000) -
Excerisable at the end of the year RERA F1I{E - 190,550,000
Weighted average exercise price IEFEHTHE N/A HK$0.405
Note: The share options were granted to consultants for Hist - BIRETR TER - tEREAXR

services in exploring investment opportunities for SERRREMSMREERE 2
the Group. [B]%R o
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23.

24,

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
No share-based payment expense (2014: HK$41,400,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

23. BRESE(E)

REBE-_E—RF+-_A=+—81t
FE G TEFEBAQNRENER
ARG AERZNZEX(ZE

— P4 : 41,400,000 7T) ©

RESERVES 24, f#B
(@) Group (a) #AKH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and AREBZEERESEEHZ5R
movements therein are presented in the Z*ATE sMEMEEmEFEER R
consolidated statement of profit or loss and EREREHRK -
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) AEQABZFHEE
Foreign currency
Share  Share option translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Ritag BRERE  AMARHE gitkE st
HKS" 000 HKS"000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000
TR TR ThEn TR T
At 1 January 2014 W_F-WE-A-A - - (8,189) (186,627) (194,816)
Profit for the year REREH - - - 308,643 308,643
lssue of share upon conversion BT ARZ5E
of convertible notes kb 144,772 - - - 144,772
Recognition of equity-settled  BARELEL R
share-based payment expenses  AEHE 2 [HFR - 41,400 - - 41,400
Bxchange difference arising A
on trandlation of functional 2IEBEELL
curreny to presentation B 8
currency - - 11,076 - 11,076
At 31 December 2014 and RZF-MET-A=1-A
1 January 2015 k=%-1%-A-A 144,772 41,400 2,887 122,016 311,075
Share options lapsed during ~~ FAEAHERE
the year - (41.400) - 41,400 -
Redlassification upon change ~ RER K EREENAE
of functional currency - - (2,887) 2,881 -
lssue of shares 350 74124 - - - 74,124
Loss for the year FEEER - - - (50,680) (50,680)
At 31 December 2015 R-F-RF+-A=1-H 218,89 - - 115,63 334,519
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25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25. REFHERE
Leases for office premises are negotiated for WMAEMENHEBHBIANT1E2
terms ranging from 1 to 2 years. At the end of the F o RNIMEHR - AEERBETTHE
reporting period, the Group's total future minimum HA L HE R R RKEBEEN AT
lease payments under non-cancellable operating ZEHAIT

leases falling due as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —F—F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FHT
Within one year —FR 855 2,701
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E-_ZFAF(BEEERF) 259 3,709
1,114 6,410
26. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26. BEAREE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the REEBRR NEENEAERER
reporting period are as follows: N
2015 2014
—F-hF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Contracted but not provided for: EETAVE MR MEH B
— Unpaid contribution for —RERMBARZ
investment in subsidiaries R ATRIB 18,086 =
27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BEBEXRZS
The key management personnel are the directors of FEBBABRARAES - KEZ
the Company. The details of their remuneration are HNGEBE M FE15 o BREIFE15FR
set out in note 15. Other than that, the Group has BEEE SN - N B R T A E At
no other significant transactions and balances with BARRG R EERR -

related parties.
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28.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

28. A EEBBEMRRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial BN D B R A H 45 R 2 BAFS AR
position of the Company at the end of the reporting MRZESIAT ¢
period includes:
2015 2014
—E-51f%F — ik
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FExT FET
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZIKE 2 -
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b & W K38 2 TR AN 5RIE 8,776 442
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK Bt /B~ R FRIE 338,483 7,554
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEMBEEH 17,165 334,060
364,424 342,056
Current liabilities REBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JES BT B R RIFkIE 3,781 7,554
Other payables H b & (< K18 430 777
4,211 8,331
Net current assets RBEEFE 360,213 333,725
NET ASSETS BEEFE 360,215 333,725
Equity R
Share capital [N 25,696 22,650
Reserves ] 334,519 311,075
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 360,215 333,725
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29. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete
list of the particulars of all subsidiaries would be
of excessive length and therefore the following
list contains only the subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period which principally affect the results

and financial position of the Group.

29.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Issued and paid-up

TEWEARFE
EERR  JLMBEMBARZHIB
RIBRILE - 8T XEHHRRE R
REANEE 2 FE RV BARREXE
BYEZMBRTA -

R-E—RFER_ZFT—NE+_H
=+—H ARAREENBARZF
FR

Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital Percentage of equity interest  Principal
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation ERTRAR attributable to the Group activities
il NEEE AL/ b gENY  Ra/ifER ARERERERIL IERH
2015 2014
“8-iF 3P
Indirectly held:
(2R
Modern Electronic Industrial Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of
Limited (formerly known &k &h HK$10,000 management
as Fulbond Corporate EAR services
Management Limited) 10,0007 RUERRE
RRETEX
RRAA
(MBRALEER
BRAA)
Source Peak Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment in
BEARAA 0 Bk 187 securities
EFRE
Legito Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Trading in
HERERAR Bk &k 10,0007 securities
EHEE
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29. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 29. XEWBARSE(£)

(Continued)
Issued and paid-up
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital Percentage of equity interest  Principal
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation ERTRER attributable to the Group ~ activities
) R G EENY  Ra/ifER ARBEEREADY IERK
2015 2014
Z®-RF CFME
Wise Utility Limited BV Hong Kong INY 100% 100% Property
Wise Utility Limited ZERNHE &% E Investment
nERE
Jolly Profit Investment Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100% Property
Jolly Profit Investment Limited 35 &% 18T Investment
nERE
EheAREBAERAR The PRC ThePRC ~ RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Property
(*Guiyang Ding Tian Investment i i ARE Investment
Consultancy Limited) 1,000,0007C MERE
*  For identification purpose only * (BRI
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30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has the following events subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

(@)  Completion of the share placement took place on
1 February 2016 pursuant to which 190,500,000
placement shares, with nominal value of US$0.001
each, were issued under the placement agreement
at the placement price of HK$0.11 per placement
share.

(b)  On 21 September 2015, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement with SZ Enterprise
Union Financial Group Limited (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which the Group agrees to
purchase and the Vendor agrees to sell the
entire issued share capital of Lamtex Securities
Limited (Lamtex”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong, being a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Vendor at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$16,000,000. The Company
is principally engaged in the provision of type
one regulated activities under the Securities
and Future Ordinance. Subsequent to end
of the reporting period, the transaction was
completed on 11 March 2016. Because the
acquisition of Lamtex was completed shortly
before the date of approval of these financial
statements, it is not practicable to disclose
further financial details about the acquisition.
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31.

32.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform to the current year’s presentation. The
Directors consider that the new reclassification
of the accounting items is more appropriate
presentation to reflect the principal activities and
financial results of the Group.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2016.

31.

32.

&

ETUHRBFEEHNHBUFERE
EHER BEFRRTRBAEEL
TREHLRVBEEMS - @518E
MFTNEF D BEE REENZS

HOEB R HRR
PR RER —_E—RE=ZA=1+H
EEEeRBRRETE -
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Financial Summary

B T5 2

A sammary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited consolidated financial statements and

restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:
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RESULTS Y
For the year ended 31 December
BEEt-RA=1t—-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“BE-HE —T-NF —T-=F —T-_—_F —T——F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FER FET FET FET FET
Revenue PN (177,804) 160,865 16,815 (17,743) (36,312)
(Loss)/profit before taxation RBiAT (B518), SR Fl (257,305) 129,139 20,279 28,242 30,656
Tax A 2,742 (6,512) - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (B1B),/5F (254,563) 122,627 20,279 28,242 30,656
Attributable to: (RS
Owners of the Company NG § (251,343) 122,627 24,416 32,659 60,886
Non-controlling interests R RER (3,220) = (4,137) (4,417)  (30,230)
(254,563) 122,627 20,279 28,242 30,656
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1f “T-NF —T-=F —T-——-F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT FAET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 427,521 611,351 470,135 698,348 692,655
Total liabilities maf (909) (9,967) (183,131) (220,877)  (685,986)
Net assets BESE 426,612 601,384 287,004 477,471 6,669
Attributable to: (RS
Owners of the Company /NI 35 426,612 601,384 287,004 258,870  (208,684)
Non-controlling interests IR - ~ - 218,601 215,353
426,612 601,384 287,004 477,471 6,669
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